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Tl-!1-' 1-<!A STE R : Wh'l iE y0ur next wltness? 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I bellevP. that 

we th~ first day, when I called Judge 

o. P. Carrtllo, I marked Exhibits E-2 !:lnd 3 

for the ~~rpose of the record. E-2 is a 

letter, CQpy of which has a certified mall 

return receipt request and it is addressed 

~o Judge Carrillo and dated May 2nd and E-3 

is a letter dated -- or correction, 

addressed to Mr. Pipkin, !1lgned by o. F. 

Carrillo, and at that time, I asked Judge 

Carrillo to identify those and he declined 

to d0 so on the basis of the Fifth Amendment. 

I can do one of two things. 

1:c can either stipulate these are true and 

correct copies or else we can rut Mr. 

Pipkin on the stand. If counsel will not 

stipulate to it, I will call Mr. Pipk:tn. 

MR. MITCHELL: I will not stinulate. 

MR. ODAM.: I cAll Mr. Maurice Pipkin. 
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MAURICE PIPKIN, 

ha v lng been duly sworn by the Court, test l fled 

a follows: 

1 X A M I [ ~ ~ l 0 N 

BY MR. ODAM: 

~ Will you please state your full name for the 

record? 

A Maurice s. Pipkin. 

Q Where do you reside? 

A Austin, Texas • 

~ By whom are you employed? 

A The State Judicial Qualifications Commission. 

Q What is your position? 

A I am the executive director. 

G How 1ong have you held that position? 

A Since September 1st, 1967. 

Q Are you generally familiar with judicial 

proceeding number five? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q I show you what has been marked as Examiner's 

Exhibit Number 2 and ask )OU if you can identify 

this i tern? 

A Yes, it is a letter that I wrote to Judge Carrillo, 
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the gentleman sitting there at the table. 

2 Q And this is a rerroductton of your signature on the 

3 ie tter? 

4 A It is. 
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MR. ODAM: We offer in evidence 

Examiner's Exhibit 2, which is generally 

referred to as notice of preliminary 

lnvestt~ntl.on. 

MR. MITCHELL: It is a document signed 

by the witness. We have the objections 

pre v lo~.ts ly lodged. 

THE MASTER· State them. 

MR. tHTCHELL: Beyond the scope, non-

judicial, relates to non-judicial conduct 

VJP.ll, no-- yes, it would, May 2nd, 1975, 

but· it does refer to conduct and that 

objection would apply. 

The third objection, as I recall 

actually founded in the basts of those 

jurisdictional matters pled, due process 

and the like, but I believe thatfairly 

summarlzes our objections. 

THE MASTER: I don't know if the record 

is clear, but if you are satisfied, I am 

satisfied. 
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MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. 

2 THE: MASTER: The objection is overruled 

3 and the exhibit is admittPd. 

4 

(Examiner's Exhibit 2 admitted in 
5 

evidence.) 
6 

7 Q (By Mr. Odam:) I show you what has been marked 

8 a.s R. Exhibit 2 and also as Examiner's Exhibit 3 

9 and asK you if y~u can identify this instrument. 

10 A This is a letter written by Judge Carrill0 in 
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response to the letter of May 2nd, which I wrote 

to him, notifying him. that a preliminary 

investigation was being instituted by the 

commission. 

THE MASTER: That letter is also 

R. Exhibit 2. 

MR. ODAM: Exhibit 3. 

THE MASTER: The ·Jne that is in response 

to that is Examiner's Exhibit 2? 

MR. ODAM: Right. 

At this time we offer in evidence 

MR. MITCHELL: YJur Honor, hearsay, and 

the same objections as previously stated. 

THE MASTER: Overruled. The exhibit ts 
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admttted. 

(Examiner's Exhibit E-3 admitted into 

evidence.) 

MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

THE MASTER: Before you start, may I 

interrupt? I don't have on my notes E-4 

either identified or admitted. What do your 

notes show? 

MR. ODAM: It has not yet been 

admitted. 

MR. MITCHELL: My desire on cr0ss-

examination of this witness, Your Honor, 

would be to propound to the witness questions 

which are which will solicit answers 

hopefully to fill in the background on the 

May 2nd, 1975, letter, so that the record 

stands complete on it and as well perhaps 

lf there is any testimony which is verbal 

apolying to E-2 or E-3, so the record is 

complete on the background on both those 

exhibits. 

Then I have perhaps other questions 

at a later date. 

This would be to fill in 
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conversations or other testimony relevant to 

these two exhibits. 

3 MR. ODAM: We object to this line of 

4 questioning on the grounds of relevancy. 

5 Opposing counsel has offered a hearsay 

6 objection and we are offering them to show 

7 that the communication took place only. We 

8 see there is no necessity to go into this 

9 background. It is communication between the 

10 two parties and what would be additional 

11 would be irrelevant. 

12 THE MASTER: He has not asked a 

13 question yet. I am not sure what he intends 

14 to ask. 

15 

16 

17 

18 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

19 

~ Q Mr. Pt~kin, I hand you now E-2, E-1. E-9. E-10 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

~nd E-ll and see tf I can ask you som~ questions. 

First, refPrrfn~ tn E-2, that ls th~ 

letter that has been ~reviously tdentifted by 

you as befn~ a lettPr to Jud~e CArrillo from you. 

as the exe~utive secretary dated May 2nd, 1975. 
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.4. That's corrPct. 

Q Now, 1et me ask yC'tU plPase, sir --
THE MMTER: You Raid I think from Judp,e 

Carrillo to you. 

MR. MITCHELL: I mPant the revPrse. 

THE MA~TER: E-2 is from Mr. P~ pki_n t, 

Judp,e Carrillo. 

A That's what I am lookinp, at, my lt>tter. 

MR, MITCHELL: To him to Jud~e Carrillo. 

A To JudP-e Carrillo. 

Q All rf~ht, I will hand you E-9 and E-10 which have 

bPen nrPvi.ously idt>ntifit>d and offPred in evidencE' 

as letters from Mr. Garland Smith to you in rela-

tion to that same sub1ect mattt>r. Do you reco~-

nize the two lettE>rs that Mr. Smith wrote you? 

A WP.ll, I reco~nize thP.m to thE' E'XtPnt that I re-

0 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

ceived th,.se lettP.rs, but insofar as havin~ i.mme-

diate ~ras~ of the contPnts. I can't tPstify to 

that. I would have to read th~sP lPttPrs ap,ain. 

All ri~ht, 

You know, they art> lE>n~thy. 

They are lettPrs to you, I bE>Hf.'ve? 

Yes, that is corrPct. 

And you mi~ht. takE> a minutf' and rt>ad them. I 

am ~oin~ to ask you some ~uesti.ons or you mi~ht 
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bP ablP to an~wPr without rPading thPm, Mr. 

2 Piokin. 

3 I wtll ask you if, in composfnR the letter 

4 of May 2, 1975, the matters that were set out in 

5 t~e F.-9 and E-10, were included in the May 2nd, 

6 1975, letters to t~e Jud~e? 

7 A Substantially so, Mr. Mitchell. 

8 Q A 11 ri..~ht. 

9 A It mf~ht be some d~ver~encP, but subst~ntislly 

10 that is the informati..on. 

II Q All rf~ht, I hPlievP ttat briefly that would relate 

12 to t~e open end lease, the st~ck, the director-

13 shfo and. perhaos, a purchasP of the car. or 

14 whatevPr fs there? 

15 A Rl~ht. 

16 0 Whatever that Exhibit, your May 2nd letter to the 

17 

18 

19 

21 

23 

24 

2S 

Judge --

A SubstAntially that fs correct. 

Q All ri..~ht, the Jud~e's answer --

MR. MITCHELL: StrfkP that. 

0 Was therP any convPrsation had with Mr. Smith 

prior to the May 2nd lettPr of 1971, Mr. Pipkin, 

that furnished an input i..nto that May 2nd letter? 

A Conceivably so. I beliPVP so, Mr. Mitchell. If 

mPmory servPS me ri~ht, I didn't makP a lo~. but 
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~P waq ~~ anrl nut of our officP nn ~~vPral occa-

qfons and T dn not know whethPr the ronv~rsatlon 

wa~ quhsequent or prior to this letter. 

Q Now, let me ask you, If your would, please, woul~ 

vou tell th~ Court what the total inout was into 

that ~ay letter to Jud~~ Carrillo. 

We have establishe~ that the two lett~rs 

from Garland ~mfth and oerhaps a conversation with 

Garland Smith. were there anyother comolafnts or 

any oth~r information communfcated tn you that 

fnrmed an Input into that l~tt~r nf May 2nd? 

A Y~s. 

Q And could you ;ust simply --

A As Jud~~ Carrillo has testfft~d. he was courteous 

enoug~ to ,tant me an interv'Pw at the hotPl fn 

AltcP. At that time, tf I recall, he admittPd tn 

these thin2s that have been alleged, but he thoupht 

that he had done nothing wrong. That was thE' 

imoresston I had frnm him. 

Q And hfs position was stated to you verbally at 

that ttme, was ft not, Mr. Piokin? 

A Corr~ct. 

Q And thereafter state whether or not he followed 

that --

MR. MITCHELL: Strike that. 
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Q Rut t~~t cnnversAtfon with him was followed up ~dt~ 1 

his formal resoonse that has been introduced fnto 

evfdenct>? 

A There was a time interval there, but. Mr. Mitchell, 

when this matter ~a~ pendtn~ on t~e dockt>t of the 

Judicial Qualifications Commission and had been 

passed from time to time. I had no more converse-

tl~ns on these particular alle~ations wit~ Jud~e 

Carrillo. 

0 Now, the E-3 is in response, I believe it has 

been established, to the May 2nd, 1975, letter? 

A That ls correct. 

Q Is that correct? 

A That is ri~ht. 

Q All rfrt,ht. Now, there was no formal notfce of 

hearin~ as of the date of E-1, was there? The 

matter, In other words, had apparently been put 

up to rest. 

A Would you permit me to elaborate a little bit on 

the procedural aspect? 

Q Certainly, that is the reason for the ~uestion. 

I want the record to be full and complete. 

A The rules provide, the rules are promul~ated by 

the Suoreme Cnurt. They are not the commission 1 s 

rules, they are the rules the Supreme Court has 
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s~t up for our opPration. 

2 

3 

4 in t~e notice of preliminary investigation all 

5 that ym intend to formally charge the Judge with. 

6 In fact, some of the letters that we write 

7 simply state therP will be a preliminary investiga-

8 t 1 on. Others cite in ~enPral the things we are 

9 concerned wfth, and sometimes the letters will 

10 say, "But this does not preclud~ -- thls is not 

11 inclusive of all that you might be charged Mith. 

12 If any other information is brought before the 

13 commission, that will constitute part of the formal 

14 charge." 

~ Q The May 2nd letter to Judge Carrillo, however, dfd 

16 . not state that there would be any additional 

17 matters? 

18 A No. 

19 Q Or that there were additional matters? 

~ A It did not state that nor did it state that it 

21 was exclusive of any other matters. 

~ ~ And I believe the same rules to which you alluded 

23 

24 

25 

provide that tn the event that -- that the matter 

can be t'losed at that prelimi.nary investigation: 

that is, the letter is sent out and a response is 
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2 to the rommis~'on for action at that sta~e. 

3 A That is corrert. If the preliminary fnvesti~ation 

4 indirstes thRt the matter does not have mertt, i ~ 

'· 

5 is frivolous, or ~elf-serving in some manner, 

6 shaoe or form. In fact of the msttPr, Mr. Mitchell, 

7 a VPry, very suhstantial numher of the complaints 

8 are never formally ~rou~ht to a hearfn~. 

9 Q As a matter of ora~tice? 

10 A As a matter of practice. 

II Q Would you tell us then was there a formal notice 

12 issued on the bas~s of t~e material contained in 

13 the May 2nd, J97~. letter? 

14 A It was included in the formal hearfn~. In fact, 

15 we had one formal notice -- I be~ your pardon, I 

16 should not have said hearin~. we had one formal 

17 notice and you recall the rtrcumstances of the 

18 ronversatton we had about that. of course. 

~ Q YPs, and would you recount t~ose for t~e record, 

20 please, sir? 

21 A I be~ your pardon? 

22 Q Would you recount --

23 !'1R. MITCHELL: Strike that. 

24 Q LPt me ask you, Mr. Pipkin, was the 

25 MR. MITCHELL: I need to ~et that 
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MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir, the first one. 

THE MASTER: It may not be in evidence. 

A Ynu're talking about the first formal notice? 

MR. MITC!-!ELL: Rfght. 

THE MASTER: It may not be fn evidence, 

Mr. Mitcht>11. .. 

(Dtscussion off the rt>cord.) 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, before we proceed 

fntry this a~ain, I would assert the obiec-

tion of relevance as to what was presented 

on direct exRmination. All that the examiner 

simply did was complete the record and put 

in the letter to Jud~e Carrillo and the 

response back to it. 

It appears to me at this point from 

the questions and the answers elicited Ro 

far that we are ~oing into matters that Mr. 

Mitchell has set forth fn his oleas fn 

abatement and special exceptions with re~ard 

to the proceedin~s. the t1min~ of the pro-

ceedln~. the rules, et cetera. 

I don't see the relevancy at this point 
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to thP answer. The first -- to the original \ 

notice, et cetera, and I ob1ect on the 

grounds of relevancy. 

THE MASTER: Well now, I am not sure 

I understand, of course, you don't stand on 

the proposftfon that Counsel is limited in 

cross to what you offered in direct, do you? 

MR. ODAM: Well, Your Honor --

THE MM~'l'ER: That is the federal rule 

but that is not the state rule. 

Now, If this is -- I am not sure what 

ft dof'!s to --

MR. OOAM: That is really my point, 

Your Honor. I don't know what defenses have 

been alleged that goes into this. I rhink 

it goes into matters that raises defenses 

as a matter of law, t~e oiea in abatement 

and due process. But I don't see where it 

goes into the defenses wit~ respf'!ct to 

general denial or merits of the case. 

I do not think it is relevant to those, 

I do not think {t is relevant to the pleas 

in abatement and sof'!cfal exceptfons and, 

therefore, as we have decided earlier, would 

not be made a nart of the record at this 
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tfm~ to v.o into it. 

Your Honor. as stat~d I MR. MITCHELL: 

at th~ outs~t of my cross-~xamfnation I have 

never accP~d~d to t~~ prooosition that a 

litt~ant on direct can authentfcatP written 

docum~nts and closP th~ door to inquiry into 

the input into those written docum~nts. 

I am trvin~ to -- I am tryin~ to hold 

to a narrow line of relevancy to simply 

proving the input into the docum~ntatfon 

that leads to and includinP. the first amend~d 

notic~ of formal oroc~dur~. 

At that point, I wfll orobably quit and 

call him hack tn conn~ctfon with testimony, 

Your Honor, that relates to the abatement, 

Pt cet~ra. 

THE MASTER: What is the relevance of 

input that gives rise tn ol~adtn~s? 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, particularly i 1i 

this cas~. Ynur Honor, wher~ th~ tssu~ was 

1ofned hack in May of 75 on the preliminary 

investfP.ation, our nosition would be that 

the investigation wa s t~rmfnat~d at that 

point pffectiv~ly, but for th~ fact that we 

have a formal notice of procedure -- a formal 
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COURT ~EPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 

CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7B40t 



!I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

ornceedfn~ notice which was fn Au~ust and 

I slmoly want to trace thP hfstnry of that 

formal noticP into thP orPsent one that we 

are tryin~ the case on. 

T'tE MASTER: Why? 

Mi. MITCHELL: Because I feel, Your 

Honor, that it becomes relevant, particularly 

in li.nE> wi. th the dtctates of the rule that you 

have a oreliminary 1nvesti~ation and you 

are bound by that preliminary investi~atfon 

etther to terminate it or ftle a formal 

notice of hearln~. 

We ~e an amended formal nottce of 

hearing that we don't have a preliminary 

fnvesti~ation on. 

THE MASTER: Doesn't that, in fact, go 

to your olea in abatement and not to ani 

defPnSP? 

MR.MITCl-IELL: Well, certainly it spills 

over, Judge ME>yers, I'm not goi.rt~ to quibble 

with the Court ort that, it does. But, I am 

trying to focus in on simoly the continuity, 

the verbal testimony and the documentary 

testimony as relates to those exhibits which 

he introduced into evidence by this witness. 
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MR ODAM: Well, on that one point, 
,o'~ 

what I introduced by t~is witness was a 
I 

letter to Mr. -- to Judge Carrillo and intro-\ 

duced the response back from t~at. That is 

asfar as we went and it appears to me by 

going into the answers, he is going into 

the matters on the plea in abatement. 

T'1E t-fASTER: W,ll, it doPS to me, too. 

I think you are going tn do it at onP time 

or another, but I thought perhaps the ordPrly 

procedure would be to cover the factual 

disputes and the procedural problems, cover 

them whPn we finish the hearing. if we do, 

on the plea in abatement because that seems 

to me that that is all that this goes to. 

MR. MITCHELL: Unfortunately then, I 

am not a vPry good advocate. It has a c lfar-

cut relevance to me, Judge Meyers, on this 

thP charging documents which he has authentl-

cated and produced and I think that verbal 

input is important. It is not dealing with 

a conventional pleading in a conventional 

case. We are dealing with a case that is 

bound by strict rules and I think that before 

I can call him back down the line in connectf n 
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:1 with thP inQuirie~ thAt I am voing to makE' 

2 :1 I 
I 

furthPr with our preliminary motions and 

3 I 
our prPtrial motions, the rPcord nePdR to ' 
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stand clearly and I think this fs the timE' 

for the record to be made on what really 

din happen that ended up in the first amended 

noticP of formal procPeding. 

But, Jud~e MeyPrs, I am not so up tight 

about tt that I ~ouldn't conform with that 

rule ,ust as graciously as anything I can do, 

1ust as the Court suggested, and terminate 

it at this point and call him back and RO 

into it at that point. It would be whatevPr 

thP Court wants, I just thought at this 

particular point would be an idPal timE' to 

at least gf't the ~keleton outlinE' for thE' 

Court and the rE>cord. 

THE MASTER: I may change my ruling, 

but at this time I sustain the objPction. 

MR. MITCHELL: And that objPction was 

now, so that I am not goinR to --

THE MASTER: IrrelPvant, really, on 

any aspect of the merits of the casP.. I am 

not qu~te sure in all candor, Mr. Mitchell, 

what the relevancy was of the introduction 
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of th~ ~ocum~nts in tssue, ~xc~pt I call 

it to couns~ls attention t~at they had been 

marked but not identified, either this morn-

tng or y~sterday ~- I guess yesterday. 

MR. MITCHELL: Oh, I see, Judge, I see, 

I didn't know that. I had heard the Court 

make that observation but what I reaDy 

wanted to do, Jud~e, was simply to carry 

brfn~ the record -- I think the record should 

reflect what has transpired. the conversa-

tfons, et cetera, of those tig~tknit rules. 

Now, that is really what I am doing, 

the ti~htknft rules, you ~ave preliminary 

investigation and you have alternatives and 

ff you don't, you have on~ of them, it fs 

a formal notfre and I say that a preliminary 

investigation and a 1oinder of an issue, or 

non-joinder of an tssue precedes every formal 

notice and it wasn't done, and I am not 

~oing into that but I just wanted to put the 

skeleton down on the board. 

Meyers, I can live with the ruling . 

THE MASTER: I will sustain it at this 

time. I am mullin~ f.t over, is what I am 

doing, Mr. Mitchell, and I don't want to take 
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th~ time to reflect on it. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri~I-Jt. 

Tl-lE MASTER: Away from the 

MR. MITCHELL: I und~:>rstand. 

THE MASTER: Away from the witnesses. 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand, J~e 

Meyers, I appreciate that, yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: So do you have anything 

further with Mr. Pipkin? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, Your Honor, I wa s 

~oin~ to ask him of the convenation that 

occurred with anybody els~:> -- well, strik~:> 

that, I was goin~ to ask him as to R-20, if 

this was the notice of formal procedure and 

then the answer and any conversations that --

and th~:> input into the first amended noticP 

of form~l proceeding and the answer to ft, 

and that was ~oing to be my question. 

He is an attorney, and, of course. he 

fs the executive ~cretary, and let him sort 

of just detail it, but I can call him back. 

T!.JE MASTER: All rtght. sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: Is that what the Court 

wants me to do or orders me to do? 

THE MASTER: That is what I would like 
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to do at t~fs time. 

MR. MITC~ELL: Note our exception on 

the limitation to ri~ht of cross-examination.! 

THE MASTER: I reserve tl-te right to 

reverse myself on that, Mr. Mitchell, and 

my rulfn~ fs that I don't think it is 

admissible on the merits. but it may well 

be admissible on the preliminary pleas, in 

fact, I think f.t is. 

MR. MITCHELL: I didn't mean to flaunt 

the Court's ruling. As the Court knows, I 

am a lawyer and I need to protect the 

record. 
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THE MABTER: Do you have anything else 

2 of Mr. Pipkin? 

3 MR. MITCHELL: No, sir. 

4 THE MASTER: You may step down. 

5 MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I do have one 

6 further question. 

7 THE MASTER: All right. 

8 

9 

10 

11 
BY MR, ODAM: 

12 

13 Q Mr. Pipkin, I show you what has been marked as 

14 Examiner's Exhibit 4, which is the answer to the 

15 notice of formal proceedings, and ask you if you 

16 can identify this document. 

17 A Y~s, I think: this is an instrument submitted to us 

18 by Mr. Mitchell originally. 

19 Q This is the answer to the notice of· formal 

20 proceeding? 

21 A Right. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. ODAM: We offer in evidence 

Examiner's Exhibit 4. 

THE WITNESS: I am not sure of what 

answer, whether that was to the first formal 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

711 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 7840\ r 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

notice or the amended notice. 

MR. MITCHELL: It is my answer to the 

original notice of formal proceeding. 

THE MASTER: was there any answer to thts 

amended not ice? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, that is the fifteen 

pound document. 

THE MASTER: Of course, yes, sir, and as 

the answer, 1t is admitted. 

(Examiner's Exhibit E-4 was admitted 

into evidence.) 

MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: He has gone back into the 

answer to the first notice of formal 

proceeding and I would like to cross-examine 

this witness as to the flow of the 

documentation and the conversations that 

were the input to that document, that is 

integrated into that. 

THE MASTER: Not at this time. 

MR. MITCHELL: Note our exception to 

the Court's ruling, specifically that counsel 

has rein vi ted cross-examination on this and 

we object to the right denied to the cross-
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examination. 

MR. ODAM: The Court raised the point 

earlier as to the relevancy and I don't know 

if it is the same objection on the answer, 

but this is being submitted on that 

truthfulness in matters in this proceeding. 

THE MASTER: That is what I understand. 

If they constitute admissions, they 

constitute evidence? 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

We pass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: I don't have any other 

questions on cross-examination other than 

t.hose opposed and objected to and sustained. 

THE MASTER: You may step down. 

MR. ODAM: we call as our next witness 

Mr. John Gaston. 
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JOHN GASTON, 

2 having been duly sworn by the Court, testified 

3 as follows: 

4 

5 

6 
BY MR, ODAM: 

7 

s Q Would you please state your full name? 

9 A My name is John G8Pton. 

10 Q Where do you reside? 

11 A I live in San Antonio, Texas. 

12 Q What is your profe as Lon? 

13 A I am a professional real estateappraiser. 

14 Q What is your age? 

15 A I will be 72 in February of this c omtng year. 

16 Q How l·)ng have you been engaged during this period 

.17. of time as a real estate appraiser? 

18 A Well, I signed my first real estate appraisal, 

19 I think, back in 1938 and at that time I was 

20 employed as manager for an Eastern life insurance 

21 company based Ln Houston. 

22 Q So that would be 37 years, appro'xima tely, of real 

23 estate appraisal? 

u A Something like that. I went in business for myself 

25 I believe, in January, 1943, and I was making real 
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estate appraisals then and also brokerage, but I 

2 have not done any brokerage since 1952. 

3 Q In the real estate appraisals you have done for the 

past 37 years, what percentage of that was done in 

5 the State of Texas? 

6 A All of it. 

1 Q What percentage of it in south Texas? 

8 A All of it. I have not appraised anything further 

9 west than Hondo and I have ·appraised as far east 

10 as Beaumont. 

11 Q What is your educational background? 

12 A I didn't take a degree, but I went to SMU. 

13 I had enough hours to be a junior and I didn't 

14 take the formal degree. 

15 Q What did you study at the time you were there? 

~ A I was intending to take a B.A. degree. I took 

17 English and math and subjects of that nature • 

.18 Q Have you had occasion, during your 37 years of real 

19 estate appraisal, to jo!n any professional 

20 organizations connected with the profession? 

21 A Yes, sir, I am a member of the Society of Real 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Estate Appraisers. We have a chapter, number 65, 

in San Antonio. I am what they call an SRA member 

of the Society. That is designated as a Senior 

Residential Appraiser. 
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I take it you have had occasion to make residential 

2 appraisals in the past? 

3 A Yes, definitely. I am a member, and still am, of 

4 the Veterans Administration of the appraisers and 

5 have been for 22 years, now. 

6 Q By whom have you been approved to be a fee appraise 

7 other than the Veterans Administration? 

8 A Well, I took an introduction course and passed an 

9 examination beforE the Federal Housing Administratl n 

10 in San Antonio and was placed on their fee panel 

11 nearly ten years ago. I am a member of the fee 

12 panel of appraisers for the Urban Renewal and also 

13 the State Highway Department in San Antonio and 

14 here in Corpus Christi as well. 

15 I am approved by the Government Employees' 

16 Credit Union in San Antonio. I have made 

17 appraisals for Bexar County in the road department 

18 and I have made appraisals for banks. 

~ Q What banks have you made appraisals for? 

~ A Westside State Bank, Broadway National Bank 

~ Q Have you had occasion to do appraisals for 

22 individuals or attorneys? 

~ A Yes, a number of times. 

~ Q Would you be able to estimate the number of 

2S appraisals of real property in the past 37 years? 
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A I could not give you an exact figure, but it would 

2 run at least five or six thousand houses or maybe 

3 more. 

4 Q Have you had occasion to appraise any property in 

5 Duval County? 

6 A Yes, just this one property about which I am going 

7 to testify. 

8 Q What prompted you to make the appraisal of that 

9 property? 

10 A You called me by long distance telephone and asked 

11 me to accept the assignment and I said I would. 

~ Q Had we met prior to that time? 

13 A N-:>, sir, not until last night. 

14 Q Prior to me contacting you, did anyone else contact 

15 you? 

16 A No, s \. r. 

17 Q Did anybody raise the possibility with you of that 

18 appraisal taking place from the Highway Division? 

19 A Sir? 

20 Q Did anyone with the Highway ·Department contact you 

21 prior to that? 

~ A Mr. c. w. Pearson, who is attached to the Highway 

23 

24 

25 

Department. I had worked on caseswith him in the 

past and he contacted me •. I was testifying in Slnt n 

two or three weeks ago and he left your telephone 
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number with me and told me to call you. That is 

2 how I got in touch with you. 

3 Q As a result of those contacts by me, you had an 

4 occasion to make an appraisal of his property in 

5 Duval County? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q Can you describe the property? 

8 A The property I appraised is located on what is 

9 known as the north half of Lot 9, Block 18, 

10 Westside Addition to the City of Benavides. This 

II is a one and a half story frame residence with 

12 dormer windows in the front and back protruding 

13 out from the roof. 

14 Q In the course of the appraisal you did, did you 

15 determine who was the owner of that piece of 

16 property? 

17 A Yes, I first went to the Benavides Independent 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

School District Office expecting tofind information 

there. In fact, in every county I have ever visited 

in before, the School District is probably more 

up on their toes as to ownership and the details of 

the real estate in their district than perhaps the 

county tax assessor. I got there and they got out 

what they used for records and they showed me a 

plat which turned out to be erroneous. They showed 
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\ 
: the property in the name of Mrs. Celia Guajardo. 

2 The lot they showed me, Lot 9 -- well, I had 
I 

3 already driven around the block that had been 

4 polnted out to ~e and I could see that the plat 

5 the school district had didn't fit this block at 

6 all. Then, I inquired over at what used to be the 

7 oldclty hall in Benavides where the city gas 

8 department is now located and they looked ~p some 

9 old city maps which were quite old. I c auld not 

10 find any dates on them, but they showed a plat of 

11 this block and I talked to them and I learned 

12 there had been a former tenant of this property 

13 by the name of Juan Rivera and they showed me his 

14 meter reading cards up to August, 1970, when he 

15 vacated. I identified the man that actually read 

16 the meters and knew this property thoroughly as to 

17 its location. I asked him to point the house out 

18 to me and that was the house that was located on 

19 this north half of Lot 9. 

~ Q After examination of the house, or observing the 

21 hou.ee, what, in your opinion, as a real estate 

U appraiser, would be the best and highest use of 

~ that property? 

U A That is as a residential purpose. 

~ Q Do you recall the -- did you have occasion to examin 
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the county deed records to determine to whom the 

2 property belonged? 

3 A Yes, I went to the Guaranty Abstract Company in 

4 Allee and they specialize in work in Jim Wells and 

5 Duval Counties and had them look up the chain of 

6 title to this particular property and they showed 

7 a deed into -- I believe it was 0. P. Carrillo, and 

8 then a deed into a man named Manges. 

g Q Did also, in the e;0urse of your investigation, you 

10 determine what the taxes were on the property? 

11 A I could nd; find out exactly, but at the Benavides 

12 School Di8trict Office, they showed only it was a 

13 vacant lot and there were no taxes for it. There 

14 was somPthing assessed at one hundred seventy-nine 

15 dollars only for the lot. 

16 Q Were there any other assessments or impcvements? 

11 A N-:>, sir. 

18 Q What type of neJghborho-:>d was this ho11se in? 

19 A Well, it is a residential neighborhood. In small 

~ towns like Benavides, houses are spotted, but this 

~ essentially is a residential neighborhood. There 

22 are other residences in the same block. 

23 Q Did you determine whether or not there was water, 

~ sewer and gas? 

~ A Yes, all of the utilities were available. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTER'S 

717 ANTELOPE"' GUARANTY BANK PL..AZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840t 



I I 
I 

------------ ----· 715 

Q What type of covering is there on the street? 

2 A It is asphalt, a paved street. It doesn•t have any 

3 curb or concrete cross-walk. 

4 Q Mr. Gaston, in your appraisal work, it is my 

5 Qnderstanding there are various approaches to 

6 determine the fair market value of property. 

7 Could you explain what those approaches are called? 

8 A Well, there 11re three basic approaches. One is 

9 called the cost approach, one is the market 

10 data approach and the other is known as the income 

11 approach. They don't all necessarily lend them-

12 nelves to an appraisal of any particular property. 

13 There are three approaches that could be employed, 

14 however. 

15 Q Would the income approach be applied to determine 

16 the fair market value of this property? 

17 A NJt at all. 

18 Q Why would that be? 

19 A I have learned what the rental income was at the 

20 time the property was last occupied in 1970, but in 

I 
I -

I 

21 order to develop an income approach, you have to ha e 

23 

24 

25 

the cone ise record of'. the expenses to operate the 

property versus income. That is generally used in 

appraising of income properties as such, that is, 

such as an office building or property upon which 

-----#-----------------------------------------------------------+--
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accurate and detailed books are kept on maintenance 

costs and so forth. 

Q NJW --

A That information was not available In this case. 

It is never used among appraisers or anyone ~lse 

to appraise a residential property, or at least 

a single-family residence. 

Q You mentioned the non-use of the income approach. 

Y.Ju did mention lJ) your statement you determined 

the rent pa ld • 

To what approach would the rent apply, would 

that apply to the market data or --

A Yes, market data. 

Q All right. We will stop then and discuss the 

market data approach. In determining that approach 

did you determine exactly what the rental had been 

on this house? 

A Yes, air, as I said, I learned from the gas 

company records that the last tenant had occupied 

this house for four or five or six years or longer, 

but he vacated it in August, 1970, His name was 

Juan Rivera, Jr. He had been the football coach 

at the Benavides High School, or at least an 

assistant to the coach. He had moved to San 

Antonio and is now an assistant coach for footb~Ll 
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at Thomas A. Edison High School and I contacted him 

2 when I got back to San Antonio. He told me he had 

3 paid $50 a month rent from the time he first 

4 occupied that property in 1963 until he vacated it 

5 in 1970. 

6 Q Did you ask him whether he considered that to be a 

7 fair rental'! 

8 A I dwelled upon that with him at some length. I 

9 wanted to get his full reaction as to whether he 

10 thought that was a fair rental or whether he was 

11 getting a concession from the fact he was getting 

12 a concession from the fact he was a football 

13 coach. He said he thought it was a fair rental 

14 and not worth a nickle over that. In fact, he 

15 made a statement to me, if they had charged any 

16 more than that, he would not have taken the house. 

17 Q Did you have occasion, in going through the market 

18 data approach, to determine the sale price of any 

19 other properties in Benavides or Duval County? 

20 A Well, as I said, I inquired at the courthouse and 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

at the county clerk's office and at the tax office 

and also at the Benavides Independent School 

District Office. I had the Guaranty Title Company 

run records of sales, looking for sales in Benavide , 

and they didn't produce any. I went back and 
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scouted for .sr.les myself,personally, and finally 

2 found two sales. I needed sales, since I was 

3 trying to evaluate the value of the house and I 

4 needed sales of 197J. I did find two. 

5 Q What was the to1l!l price on those two sales? 

6 A One sold for $5,500 and the other one for $4,500. 

7 Q Did you have occasion to examine --

8 A Yes, I dtd. 

9 Q ThP two sale~? 

10 A Yes. 

11 Q Would you con!; i rlPr thE' --

~ A I went ovt and looked at the houses and conftrmed 

13 the ~ale~ with the occupants, the people that had 

14 hou~ht t~n~e houses. 

15 Q And cHrl you --

16 A OnP m"'n 1 s name was Garza, and the other man 
1 

s 

17 name wn~ Saenz, I believe. 

18 Q That would be -- Lobtrto" 

19 A Lobi.rfo. 

~ Q Lobirto Saenz? 

~ A Yes, sfr. 

~ Q And the othPr one was Garza. Samuel Garza? 

23 A YPs. 

· 24 Q All rhht. 

~ A Now, Mr. Garza, I believ~. bou~ht from Mr. Frank 
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Vaello, and Xr. :.Renz, Lobirio Saenz, bou~ht from 
711 

another man by the name of Garza. I have his name, 

his full name, if that is necessary. 

Q That would be BPnito V. Garza? 

A Benito V. Garza. He sold to Mr. Lobirio Saenz. 

Q And you talked with the ~urchasers of those two 

oieces of prooerty? 

A Yes, si.r, l di_d, 

Q And you had occasiun to see those two pieces of 

pro~erty? 

A Yes, sf.r, I cHd. 

Q And your opinion as a real e~tate ap~raiser. would 

those two pieees of ~roperty be similar or compara-

ble to the piece of ~roperty in question? 

A Well, of course, I s~oke -- we all know that there 

are no two exact ~feces of pro~erty. However, I 

think that these two pro~erties which are both 

sin~le family residences Mve that de~ree of com-

~arability with the subject prnperty which is a 

s{n~le family residence, They were both older 

houses, 

I was unable to determine exactly the a~e 

of the comparable sales, but from lookin~ at them, 

I could see that they are both more than twenty 

years old, and I thought that was a comparable 
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fE-ature. 

ThE-y wPre one story sfngle family residencE's, 

but each one had three bedrooms and a bath, whereas 

the subiect property had four bedrooms and a bath 

and a half. 

Q Your examination revealed that the property tn 

question deeded from 0. P. Carrillo to Clinton 

Manges has not been occupied to the best of your 

knowled~e since Mr. Rievera moved out? 

A From the inqu{ry I made, amon~ different people 

around Benavides. tt appeared that that house had 

not been occupied. 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, Mr. Gaston. 

lour Honor, we object and move to strike as 

hearsay while we are appreciative of the 

rules that apply to the preliminary inquiry 

on an exnert, this line of testimony goes 

afield from that basic rule on the Question 

of the whys and wherE-fores of the occupancy 

and consequently we object. 

TqE MASTER: The ob1ect on is what? 

MR. MITCHELL: Hearsay, Your H~nor. 

THE MASTER: Woll, with respect to the 

MR. MITCHELL: And pardon me, Jud~e. 

hearsay and no personal knowledge. 
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THE MASTER: W•ll, ulth reooect to tho i 

thi~ te~timony, but perhap~! 

not all of it, testimony as what he learned 

from other sources with respect to the 

occupancy that is not probative, that it 

was not, in fact. occupiPd but it is admitted 

to Ahow the basis of his ooinion. Do you 

wish to takP issue with that? 

NR, ODAM: No, Your Honor. 

Q Hy last questton, Mr. Gaston, related to apparently 

Mr. Rlevera, that was the person that apparently 

occupied the house. 

I assume then that perhaps the-- well, 

would it apoear from outside observation that the 

questfoned property mi~ht have been, since it ~as 

not occupied for that period of time, in what 

<ie~rPE>of repair or upkeep? 

A w~ll, I was instructed, you instructed me not to 

~o on to the property and so I was unable to 

ins~ect the interior of this house. I could only 

bok at it from the exterior, which I did from the 

street, 

Q And do you recall why I instructed you not to go 

on the property? 
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A You told me that vou had reauested permission from I 
2 the owner whn hRd declined. 

3 Q Mr. Han~es? 

4 A Yes, Mr. Mange~. but I never did meet Mr. Man~es 

5 or talk with him. But I only could see the --

6 observe this property from the street and it 

7 appears that it has been subject to some vandalism, 

8 unusual wear and tear, which all vacant properties 

9 suffer. 

10 0 CPrtainly. 

II A If it just sits there vacant. 

12 Q Yes. sir. 

13 A It had the appearance to me, of course, this Is 

14 my ooinion, but I have looked at a few thousand 

15 houses in my day, and it has the appearance of 

16 having sat there quite a while vacant. I wouldn't 

17 know how lone. 

18 Q But I take it that the comparable sales that you 

19 eYamfned were not obviously, since they were lived 

20 in, fn. such a state of repair 

21 A Well, I didn't ~et to S"'f" these comparable !'!ales 

22 at the time of the sale, you understand. They 

23 have been repaired. 

U Q Yes, sir. 

~ A And sort of added on, remodeled and had ~ood 
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matntf'nancp ~tnce thPy had bPen sold and are now 
I 

occu~tPd. The pPo~lP t~at occu~y them now arP 

both rP~ularly Pmoloyed, ~ood ~olfd citizens. 

Q YPs, sir. 

A And they arP keeoin~ those ~rooPrties u~ oretty 

well. 

Q So t~e two sales which, in your opinion, werf' com-

oarable that t~ok ~lace back during 

A They took ~lace back in 1970. 

0 In 1970, werP sales for $5,500 and $4,500? 

A That's ri11:ht. 

Q Now, based upon those com~arablP sales, did you, 

and in goin~ through the markf't data ao~roach, 

d"d you arrive at an o~ini.on as to what the fair 

markPt value would have been for thP house in 

quPstion, if it had been sold in OctobPr, 1970? 

A I did. WE> haven't touched u~on the -- what I 

think fs one of the -- asstrong a ~oint to be 

considered as any other, and that fs it's indicate 

valuf' based upon it's rental valuP. It's indicated 

markf't value, as reflectE'd by it's rE'ntal value. 

Now, this house was rPntE>d for fifty 

dollars a month, and had been so rented for a 

number of years and it has bP.en my ex~erience ovPr 

the years, and I have PmployE>d -- and I have used 
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this t~chniQue many, many times successfully, that 
1 

prooertiPs that -- rPsidPntial oroperties that are 

tn -- rented to more or less lower income people 

will sell for. from about a hundred and twenty 

times to a hundred and forty times their monthly 

rental. 

I was unable to document that in Benavides 

in Duval County, there wasn't enou~ht market 

data available. Where you have to know -- the 

aopraisers must know to use this multiplier tech-

nique, you must know the rental of the property 

at the date of sale. Not what it might have 

rented for a month later or six months later, 

or six months prior. but on the date of the sale 

you had to know what the market, what the rental 

value actually was or what was actuallv being 

paid in rent. 

The relationship between that and what the 

oroperty sells for can be established by merely 

dividing the sal~ orice of thP oroperty by the 

monthly rental and I have done that in B~xar County, 

especially once I had developed -- one time in 

some appraisal work I had, I d~vploped as many 

as seventy-five such sales and I have watched 

thP development of these multipliers over the 
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year~ and thev arp pretty constant, thPy will run 

from about a ~undred -- somPtimPs lower -- a 

hundrE-d and twenty. somPti.mes lowE-r, as low as 

a hundrPd maybe, and up to about a hundred and 

forty. 

In fact. the V.A. and the F.H.A. both, the 

V.A. I know especially, has insisted on -- and do 

fns!st on every residential appraisal that t~E' 

appraiser must indicate that markE-t -- that multi-

olier that he thinks would Pxoress the value of 

the property as well as compare it with comparable 

sales. 

The one technique is sort of to balance and 

to be compan•d with what is producpd in the technl-

que, that is comparin~ the sales as well as compar-

in~ it with us1n~ the market data, and tt's rental 

influ~>ncP to see how they balance out. 

Now, I did that in this oropPrty. I didn't 

have as many sales as I would like to have develope , 

I only had two, but I thou~ht that in my experience 

in lookin~ at the house and what I cmld see, I 

thou~ht this house was worth a little bit more than 

those two properties. probably both on the date 

of their sales, and fr's rental, it's actual bona ft e 

rental was fifty dollars a month and I applied that. 
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and I t~fnk that is the hf~h multiplier for that 

which ~s a hundred and forty. 

I rlon't -- I have never seen a house of thAt 

type sell for more than a hundred and fnrty times 

it's monthly rent. so a hundred and forty times 

ft's monthly rent of fifty dollars would oroduce 

an estimated value of seven thousand dollars. 

which, as I say, is a little more than those two 

other sales broug~t. but I thought it was logical 

and realistic. 

Q And at the low range multi_pl ier, a hundred and 

tw~y. that would be six thousand dollars? 

A Yes. six thousand a hundred and twenty times 

fifty, Yf>S. 

Q So that would-- i~ your opinion it would be on 

the high range of t~at? 

A Well, yes, you see that is where your comparable 

sales have got to be used. If I had used a 

hundred and tw~y as a multiplier times fifty, I 

would have an indicated value of six thousand 

dollars. 

Whereas, one of these houses brought fifty-

five hundred dollars and I think this house is 

worth more than that fifty-five hundred dollars, 

usi.ng dating i.t all back to 1970. 
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Q So ln your opinion the flir markPt valuP f.n 

72~ 

19701 
would be 

A It would b~ sevPn thousand dollars. 

Q Seven thousand dollars? 

A Y~s. 

Q In the process of makin~ the appraisal of this 

property, did you have o~caslon to -- well, I 

see that you have 

A This is a file copy. 

Q And this is the copy you wer~ r~ferring to a 

whfle ago for some of your information, for your 

testtmony here today, as to names, etcetera? 

A Yes, str. 

Q And I show you what is indicated as an appraisal 

report and ask you if you have sen this document 

before? 

A This ts the ori~inal appraisal report, yes, sir. 

Q All rhht. 

MR. ODAM: I will ask the court 

reporter to mark it as the next Examiner's 

Exhibit. 

(Marked for identification by reporter 

as Examiner's Exhibit E-41.) 
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Q Hr. Gaston, I show you what the reporter has 

marked as Examfr.r's Exhibit 41 and, first of all 

I will ask you if this ts an appraisal report 

prepared by you and is s{gned by you with the 

C'erttficatlon? 

A Yes, sir, {t is. 

Q And fn the appraisal report there is a -- several 

photographs, for example, on page two, a photo-

graph of the subject property? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Did you take this photograph? 

A I did. 

Q On the next page there is a --

A A sketch of the -- of the floor plan as best I 

could deve!op It from observing the house from the 

outsfde, and from talking with Juan Rievera, who 

was tht> tenant. 

Now, this next page, I want to make a com-

ment about this. 

Q Page 3A? 

A YE's, sir. 

Q All ri.~ht. 

A At the top of oage ~A I have madE' a sketch here 

~howi.n~ the way the olat i.s sPt out on the 

Benavides Independent School District records, 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE.;, GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 

CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840t 



2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

ann at thP bottom of th~ page, I show a copy 
721 

that . 

I made in pencil from th~ nlat on the record at 

I put the street numbers and the street 

names on this lower plat. I put those street 

names, takin~ them from the old records that used 

to be over at th~ city hall, and I am not really 

sure that thesP street names even show on the 

county records. 

Q YPs, sir. 

A That is the only discrepancy. 

Q Yes, sir. 

A I put them there for your information. There are 

no street signs that I found in Benavides and 

even the people that live on the two comparable 

sales, they don't know the name of the street that 

they were living on. 

Q And the amparablP sales indicate at page SA and 

SB, there appears to be photographs here. Did 

you have occasion to take those photographs your-

self? 

A I took them both, yes. sir. 

Q All right. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, at this tf me WE" 
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would offer into PvfdPncp Examiner's 

Exhibit No. 41. 

MR. MITCHELL: Obiection, hearsay, 

~ond thP scope of tnquiry and no proper 

authentication particularly as to the photo-

~raphs. Your Honor. 

THE '"fASTER: Obiectfon overruled and 

the Court fs admitting it. 

MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q Mr. Gaston, let me ask you, pleme, sir, some pre-

liminary questions. The methods that are used 

by appraisers. I believe you identified as the 

market data approach? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Cost ~roach? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And what are the other methods? 

A And the other is the income approach. 

Q The income approach bein~ ~enerally applied to 
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prop~rty that oroduc~s an 'ncome as indicated by 

t~e method, t~e name of t~e method? 

A Yes. ~ir, that ~s rt~ht. 

0 Captt~ltzation of the income, reducin~ to present 

worth, knowing fully the income, the expenses on 

the su~1ect property? 

A That is right. 

0 Am I correct? 

A Yes, sir, Th~ income approach, I t~ought I had 

already explained that, that ts used tn commercial 

oro"erty where there may be one or more or maybe 

several tenants, all in one property. 

Q Did you employ -- well, t~e reason for my ques-

tion was that the property here you treated as 

resirlential property and applied the market data 

approach? 

A That's ri~ht. 

Q And check your market data approach with th~ 

· comparable sales approach, am I correct? 

A Well, the comparable sales approach is a part of 

the market data approach. 

Q All ri~ht, and the comparable sales is not an 

independent approach, you will a~ree, won't you? 

A I won't a~ree with that in every case. Sometimes 

the comparable sales are the only reliable data 
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that is availahlP. 

~omparabl~ salPs aporoach is thP most dan~~rous 

aooroach in that it fs not an ind~o~ndent approach, 

but in fact a cross-check on the mark~t data 

approach or on the income anproach. 

A Now, the income approach can only be -- cannot 

bP employet'l. T have never seen it employed. I 

have never known it to be employPd fn a sin~lP 

for -- to appraise a single family residence. 

Q I am ~o:f.ng to ~~t to thts in a minute, Mr. Gaston. 

A Yes, sir, now 

Q What I am askin~ about is the d~vice of a compara-

ble sales, I need to get an understanding of what 

your t~stimony is to continue my cross-examinatfon. 

Is, or ts not, the comparable sales approach 

a very dan~erous approach when it is used fndepen-

dent of either the market data aoproach or the 

income approach in determining market value? 

A Sir. no, I don't think it is a dangerous approach. 

In fact, there are many cases where w~ don't use -

where we rely very heavily upon the market data 

approach. Now, you say the marketdata aoplD.'Ich, 

and then you say the comparablP sales approach, 

Well, they are one and the same thing. 
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Q All ri.j;!ht. 

A The use of the comparable ~ales i.s a part of the 

market data approac~. 

Q It ts not a cross-check? 

A No. 

Q On the market data? 

A No, the use of the comparable sales is a part of 

t'f-te market data. 

Q And, of course, you 

A And In thts casP, I had the two comparable sales 

as well as the rental income which also i.s a 

part -- I used AS a part of the market data. 

0 And that was going to be my next question, why 

when you had A pfece of property which was the 

sub1ect property for appraisal, that was. as 

you were able to determine by talki~to the tenant 

prtmartly, used as an income property, you did 

not use the Income approach rather than the 

market data approach. Did you have a reason that 

you can tell us? 

A Well, I said that -- I thought under the direct 

examination here that the only Information you 

could develop from t'f-te single family residence, 

that is reliable, would be it's rent. 

were a set of -- if t"tere were a set of books 
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I I mafntain~d by th~ owner, the lPssor. reflectin~ 

the actual maintenance cost. from day to day, 

month to mont~. the actual tax payout, the actual 

4 insurance cost and any other cost that he mi~ht 

5 have, if those -- if that data w~re available, it 

6 would be possible to develop an income approach 

7 and wind up with some net fncomP. 

8. Q Which you could capitalize for the useful life 

9 A Which you could cppitalize, but there a~afn it is 

10 not a sound approach for residential property for 

11 this reason: When you have the net income which 

12 would be just a small part of the ~ross monthly 

13 rent, I would have that net income and you can 

14 multiply by twelve to ~et the annual net income 

15 and then you wouldn't know what rate to capitalize 

16 at. 

U Q You could pro1ect it to a formal and usual 

is capitalization .of ten, fifteen or twenty years, 

19 couldn't you, which you customarily --

20 A Now, t:~roperly, I c1on't know how -- many appraisers 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

mi~ht do it that way, but the classic way of 

doln~ it and the proper way of doln~ it would be 

to have other market sales where you have the 

income -- the net income established, reliably, 

and to see at what rate they did actually sell to 
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produC'P capital. 

Q WPll, let m~ Rtat~ to you. Mr. Gaston, my problem 

hPrP with your approach, and that is that you 

have used thP markPt data approach and as thf" 

footfn~ and bAsis of you~ markPt data aopxach you 

usPd the fi~ur~ of fffty dollars a month as bein~ 

th~ ~o~p~l. which you pro;ectPd to ascertain by 

apolvin~ a formula, which you say has bePn d~v~loped 
I 

in your yPar~ of ~~pPri~ncP in appraisal in BPxar 

County to an incr~mPnt of onf" hundred and twenty 

or one hundrPd and forty to com~ un with the markPt 

vatu~ of thfq prooerty based on value and that 

aoproach ugfn2 that "rtfffcial on~ hundr~d and 

twenty and onP hundr~d and forty tncr~ment betwePn 

sfx and sevf"n thousand dollars. 

Now. t~e probl~m that t hav~ with that 

aporoach t11 ffrst of all you'rP locktn~ yourself 

fn to a fifty dollar per month rPntal on a four 

hf"droom, one and a half bath house. That Is my 

ftr~t problem and secondly 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, t would ob,ect 

ffrst of all, the lfnf" of quf"stioninP, if 
I 

that is a que~tton a~ opooE~ed to a 11 tatement •j 
ta arJumentative and 1t would be hPtter f f ~ 

he could couch • question a11 oppos~d to 
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E'xplAtnitW for thE' rPcord whAt hi.s di.fff.• 

2 
culty Is. Obviously, he ts having difficulty 

3 
with it. but that ts not 1n the form of a 

4 
Question And I pose it ts argumentative 

5 
with this witness. 

6 THE M\STER: I don't think it is all 

7 that argumentative. He wtll have to follow 

8. 

9 MR. Mifr,HELL: Excuse me, JudgE>, I was 

10 trying to avoid what I got Into yesterday. 

11 and I will go throu~h each one of these 

12 items one at a time --

13 THE MASTER: The ohiection is overruled. 

14 When the objection is overruled, you quit 

15 talking and start askln~. 

16 Q Mr. Gdston, as a mattPr of fact. when you talked 

17 to Mr. Riviera, he told you he was the football 

18 coach, didn't he? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

~ Q And he said he rented it for about six or seven 

21 years? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

~ Q And that the tP.nancy terminated sometime in 1970? 

~ A In 19 what? 

~ Q When did the tenancy terminate? 
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A HP lndfcatrd thAt he vacatPd that house In 

Au~ust, I beliPvr, at t~e end of Au~ust fn 1970. 

Q And he told you that in his opinion it was a top 

rental of the property in 1970, am I correct? 

A He said he thou~ht that that was a fair rental 

for that house during the time he occupied it up 

until August of 1970, considering the condition 

of the house that it was in. 

Q I assume the only time you have ever seen the 

house, and the only time you have ever been in 

the county, wa s within the last what --

A Yes, sir, that's right. 

Q -- thirty dayg? 

A Yes, fdr. 

Q You have to kind of proiect back what it looked 

like six years ago or five years ago? 

A I am relying heavily, I will aomit, I am relying 

heavily on what Mr. Riviera said t~e andition of 

the house was and he sald that he thought fifty 

dollars a month rent was fair for. that house at 

that time. 

Q I thank you for that answer, but a four bedroom, 

bath and a half house rented to a high school 

coach for fifty dollars a month 

MR. MITCHELL: Strike that. 
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I Q L~t mP Ask you t~is, werP vou lookfn• at actual 

2 rPntal value of fiftv dollar~ or were you really 

3 
lookin~ to the concept of fair rental value? 

4 A Well, we Pxpressed it a little differently. We 

5 iust usually say the economic rPnt, which fs the 

6 fair market rental value and I was try~ng to find, 

7 to P~tablish in my mtnd whe thPr or not I thou~~:ht 

8 fifty dollars -- whether I should rely on the 

9 fifty dollar a mooth befng it's economic rent. 

10 Q Assume, Mr. Gaston, that thP economic --

11 MR. MITCHELL: Strike that, 

12 Q What was your opinion based on, your inquiry as 

13 to the economic or fair economic rental value in 

14 1970 of this four bedroom, bath and a half house? 

15 A Baeed upon the information that Mr. Riviera gave 

16 me as to the physical condition of the house and 

17 thP small size of the rooms, and the fact that it 

18 had no central heat or PVPn wall furnaces: it had 

19 little !!:as stoves to heat it. and the fact that 

20 t~e house was in bad phy~ical condition, I ftnally 

21 came to the conclusion that he was right, that the 

22 fifty dollars a month was probably the economic 

rent. 

24 Q All right, and you--

25 A I talked to another knowledgable person in that 

------~~--------------------------------------------------------------------~-
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Vf'ry neighborhood of thifl houRe, who knew this 

housP and has lived therP all of his life, and I 

asked him if he t~ou~ht t~at rent was high or low 

and he said no, hP thought that it was about a 

fair rent. 

Q But you had Pnough presence of mind to make an 

inquiry to make sure that the rental wasn't really 

fixed in as a part of being a football coach and 

A I checked into that, too, I tried to make an 

ob1ective inquiry fnto that whole matter. 

Q If that fifty dollars a month is correct, and 

usfng your one hundred and twenty to one hundred 

and forty increment is correct, then the six to 

seven thousand dollars is the reasonable market 

value usin2 that market data approach? 

A That's right. 

Q If it is incorrect by, say. a hundred per cent, 

then naturally thf' market data approach figure 

would be incorrect, right? 

A If it were -- i.t -- now, what is wrong by a 

hundred per cent, you mean? 

Q If the rental. 

A If the rental i.s understated, you mean? 

Q Is understated, yes. 
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7401' 
Then I would say the ~ro~erty is worth more money 

if I could be convinced it had a hi~her rental I 
value. 

Q Or, if the tnuut into the one hundred and twenty 

or one hundred and forty increment which you 

~athered by reason of your V.A. and F.H.A., in 

the San Antonio or Bexar County area, is not 

a~~licable or,auprouriate to the Duval County area. 

that would also affect the figure, am I correct? 

A Well, if it is fncorrect, yes, Of course, any-

thing that is incorrect would force a change. 

Q Sure, because when you make the aoproach to an 

ap~raisal problem, you identify first of all, do 

you not, the regional influence, isn't that part 

of the methodology which you use as an appraiser? 

A Let me comment on that. When you ex~ress the value 

of a oiece of ~ro~erty as it's market value, we 

are ~peaking of how much -- how much money the 

property can be converted into. We are talking 

about the accumulation of capital. 

Q All rf.p:ht. 

A N~money capital is a fluid thing, and if oroper-

ties are selling in one part of the state or 

county or city ~r nation at a higher -- on the 

basis to yield a higher rate of return, it attracts1 
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3 I 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

cRnftal from ot~~r nart~ of the Atate~ the cfty, \ 

'"" oounty, thP nat<nn •nd ha< • tPndanoy to I 
buck up the co~petftfon for buying and t~at lowprs 

0 All rht,t. 

A So, the~P multfplters that I have developed over 

the years are rPal constants. ThPy iust don't 

vary much. If the rental value goes up, the sale 

nrice goes up, hut the multipliers remain co~ant. 

Now. I think the multiplier is A sound 

concept for Duval c~unty or Bexar County or El Paso 

County or Harris County or any other county. 

Q WPll, the reason for my 

A I use them, not only in Bexar County, I have done 

more work in Bexar County and that is the reason 

I emphasize Bexar County. 

The multiplier is A ~retty c~nstant thing. 

Itdoesn't vary much below A hundred and it 

doPsn't go hardly above a hundred and forty. 
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Q It is, however, a product of your own personal 

2 e xpe:dence in. the Bexar County area? 

3 A Well, I would say the bulk of my experience and 

4 testing of it, I would have to admit, would be 

5 in Bexar County. 

6 Q Can you point to me a textbook that uses a concept 

7 of multipliers? 

8 A I don't believe I can, but that doesn't prove it 

9 is not one of the ~est concepts, because now 

10 recently, this last year, in fact, I think this 

11 last summer,the V.A. has issued a letter to every 

12 fee appraiser in the Units d States instructing 

13 them to use the multiplier in residential 

14 properties. In the case of four units, where there 

15 is a good deal of income involved, they will not 

16 accept anything else. 

" Q But that is for the purpose of determining the V.A. 

18 guarantees on the property? 

19 A That is right. 

m Q Mr~ Gaston, are you an M.A.I.7 

n A No, sir, S.R.A. 

~ Q The comparable sales here, the.Garza sale and the 

23 

24 

Valleo sale, I believe, were not truly comparable, 

because, first, of the size of the dwellings? 

25 A Well, that would not make them uncomparable. You 
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never do hardly find where the comparable sales 

2 have a comparable size of the subject property. 

3 Q But that is ideal? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Were the comparable sales properties occupied by 

6 an owner or were they rented such as the Manges 

7 property 'l 

8 A I am a little hazy on that. I think they both --

9 I don•t think they were occupied by the owners. 

10 I don•t know whether they were vacant at the time 

II of the sale or had been rented by the persons that 

12 bought them. 

13 Q And you have no record of the income produced from 

14 them or if, in fact, they were rented1 

15 A No, if I had, I would have used that. 

16 Q Dtd you calculate the square footage of the Manges 

17 house? 

18 A I was not able to. I would estimate the square 

19 foot area to be, on the two floors, a total of 

20 1,136 square feet, however, I don•t represent that 

21 to be the actual figure. I 

22 Q Well, you 

23 THE MASTER: Let him finish. 

24 Q Were you finished, please?. 

~ A Yes, sir. 
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'I Q Assuming 1,100 square feet, can you give us a 

2 

3 A 

rule of thumb on the cost today to build that house?! 

The question would be the cost in 1970. , 

4 !'understand, but could you give us that cost today 

5 of reproducing that home? 

6 A The cost today? 

7 Q Yes. 

8 A I would estimate-- you can build a two-story house 

9 cheaper than a one-story. I would say the coat 

W today would be about-- it doesn't have any central 

11 heat and no built-in kitchen equipment with range 

12 and hood and so forth, no carpet or so forth, 

13 and it was a very plain house. I would say you 

14 could build that house today for twelve and a half 

15 to thirteen dollars a square foot. 

16 Q Where have you seen a contract let today for any 

17 kind of house for thirteen dollars a square f~ot? 

18 A I make estimates of the cost of production for the 

19 

20 

V.A. I have been working and am at this time on 

that. I know some of the costs go as high as $20. 

21 Q Or $25? 

~ A Yes, but that is on a concrete slab and with carpet 

23 and central heat and air and built-in range, ovens 

24· and so forth; sliding glass door walls and patios 

~ and so forth. 
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Q I thought you told me and the court you didn•t go 

2 into the house? 

3 A I didn't. 

4 Q Well, how do you know that it didn't have this 

5 equipment? 

6 A I talked to Mr. Rivera. He said it didn't have a 

7 tile bath and didn't have tile floors in the bath 

8 and he said that the kitchen drain was a -- he 

9 described it to me, and I have seen them. He said 

10 it was a thin drainboard with a chromium trim. 

11 He thought it was covered with linoleum, but I 

12 think it was probably covered with Marlite. I 

13 don't know that, but I envisioned the house that 

14 way, because I have seen those drainboards with 

15 thin chrome around the edge. 

16 Q Anybody that wanted to make their own calculations 

17 on the cost method of approach would n~have a leg 

18 to stand on, then, based on that? 

~ A No, sir, they would not. 

20 Q Either that or using your figure, that and 

21 depreciating it back to 1970? 

~ A Yes, and on the cost approach, an M.A.I. could not 

23 do that. 

24 Q You just got through telling us you could take the 

25 Garza sale and Valleo sale and then apply an 
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artificial multiplier of 120 to 140 and come up 
~r~· 

2 with a figure and it didn•t bother you to do that, 

3 did it? 

4 A I said, though, in qualifying that, that if the 

5 rental value is understated, the resulting figures 

6 would be underfigured. 

1 MR. MITCHELL: Thank you. I believe 

8 that is all I have, Y~ur Honor. 

9 

10 

11 

12 
BY MR, ODAM: 

13 

14 Q Mr. Gaston, I show you what has been marked as 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23. 

24 

25 

Examiner's Exhibit 3. I quote from that and it 

says, "Under such trade, he received lot and house 

in Benavides owned by me and having a value of 

fifteen thousand dollars." 

Assuming for the moment the property referred 

to there is traded as the same property you 

examined, In your opinion, would fifteen thousand 

dollars be a fair market value of this property? 

MR. MITCHELL: The record speaks for 

its~lf. The ranges of value is before the 

Court. 
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I 

I i 
I 
I 

THE MASTER: The objection is 

747 t 
overruled. , 

2 
1 

Q The statement has been made the value of the house 

3 was fifteen thousand dollars. ould fifteen 

4 thousand dollars be, tn 1970, the fair market 

5 value of that pDperty you examined? 

6 A Based on the data I was able to develop and based 

7 upon my looking at the house from the street, I 

8 would say that the house was not worth fifteen 

9 thousand dollars tn 1970, I think it would be abou 

10 seven thousand. 

11 MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

12 

13 

14 

15 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

16 . 

17 Q You have been asked to appraise and you have done 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

a good job on using the method of appraisal you 

used. 

It is a fact that when you make an objective 

appraisal, the party assigns a value to it and that 

is one thing and what you come up with is another 

thing'l 

24 A That is right. 

~ Q When you inquire into comparable sales and they 
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tell you we have assigned a value of fifteen 

2 thousand dollars, you take that input and put it 

3 in and you weigh it one way or the other, is that 

4 correct? 

5 Let's say the Garza sale had been a thirty 

6 thousand dollar sale. You would have taken that 

7 input and tempered it with your own experience? 

8 A I would have to answer that this way. I could 

9 ill~strate it this ~ay. In many, many assignments 

10 that come to my desk they have a contract already 

11 signed at a certain price. I make it a point to 

12 disregard any such information as that. I am not t 

13 be swayed by contract, because I don't know the 

14 circumstances. 

15 Q And part of the comparable sale determination is 

16 to decide whether it is a true market value? 

17 A Yes. 

U Q And whether one party has a duress? 

19 A I don•t know that and I don't rely on the contract 

20 

. 21 

22 

price for that reason. I frequently appraise the 

property above what the contract price mtght be 

and many, many times below. 

23 Q so, to ask you what the party put on that property 

24 would be asking you 

U A Asking me what, now? 
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---i--
I ) C<. To ask you what parties put on the property, that 

would be 

No, just what I said to him. I don't think it was 

4 worth fifteen thousand dollars in 1970, I think it 

5 was worth seven thousand dollars, as I have said, 

6 based on the information I have. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: No further questions. 

8 MR. ODAM: Just one further question. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

BY MR. ODAM: 
13 

~ Q Mr. Mitchell asked something about a duress. I 

15 believe you define, in~ur appraisal, what fair 

16 mark:e t value is. Could you restate that? 

17 A Well, I can read it out of this. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Market value is the price which the property 

would bring when offered for sale by one who desire , 

but is not obligated to sell, and is bought by one 

who is under no necessity to buy, and taking all 

uses into consideration and to which it is either 

in all probability will become available in the 

reasonable future. In other words, the market 

approach embraces the thought that it is an arm's 
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length transaction between the buyer and seller, 

2 neither of whom are under compunction and both of 

3 whom are familiar with the property. 

4 l-1R, ODAM: Pass the witness. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

BY MR I MITCHELL: 
9 

10 Q And that is whether you go into the market data 

11 approach or 

12 A That is the market data approach definition, That 

13 is the estimated value that I am valuing it on 

14 in 1970. 

15 Q Does it have anything to do with the comparable 

16 sales 7 

t 
I 
I 

17 A Yes, it does, because the comparable sales indicate 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

24 

25 

sales of property. If the appraiser could learn 

that a sale was between a father and son, he would 

not use it as a comparable sale, because it would 

not express market data. 

MR. MITCHELL: No further questions, 

Tlt'i: MASTER: We will recess until 10:15. 

(Short recess taken.) 
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SILVERIO VALADEZ, 

2 having been duly sworn by the Court, testified 

3 as follows: 

4 

5 

6 

BY MR, FLUSCHE: 
7 

B Q What is ~our name? 

9 A Silverio Valadez. 

10 Q How are you --

11 MR. MITCHELL: What was that name again? 

12 THE WITNESS: Silverio Valadez. 

13 MR. FLUSCHE: Y-i-1-v-e-r-1-o 

14 v-a-1-a-d-e-z. 

15 Q How are you employed? 

16 A With the Texas National Guard, 

17 Q In a mill tary capacity? 

18 P Yes, sir, I am emplo~ed on a civil service job, 

19 I am the First Sergeant for the unit on the 

20 weekend training. 

21 Q So, ~ou carry a militar~ rank of First Sergeant? 

~ A Yes,. sir. 

23 Q What is the name of your unit? 

24 A Company B, Second Battalion, Mechanized Infantry. 

25 Q And you are stationed at Alice? 
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A Yes, sir. 

2 Q In the performance of your duties, tell the Court 

3 how you record the absences and presence of members 

4 of your unit? 

5 A we have a morning report. It is called a DA Form 1 

6 morning re~ort. We will out one of them every 

7 weekend whenever we have meetings and we record 

8 all of the absences and people present for that 

9 weekend. 

10 Q Who maintains that record? 

11 A I do, sir. The company commander is the one that 

12 signs the form, but I make out the report. 

13 Q D:) you retain custody of those reports? 

14 A Yes. 

IS Q Do you have those with you? 

16 A Yes. 

D Q On Roberto Elizondo, from January, 1972, to 

18 September, 1973, do you have a record for this 

19 man? 

20 A Yes, sir. 

21 Q In response to a request from our office, have you 

22 prepared a report of Roberto Elizondo? 

a A I have, sir. 

24 

25 

MR. FLUSCHE: would you mark this as 

Examiner's Exhibit 42. 
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(The above-mentioned document was 
2 

marked for identification as Examiner's 
3 

Exhibit 42.) 
4 

5 Q Sergeant, I have handed you wat has been marked 

6 E-42 and I will ask you whether or not that is 

7 an extract you prepared from the morning reports 

8 in your custody? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q I have a certificate affixed to the bottom of that 

11 showing that you are trecustodian and showing this 

12 is a true extract and you have executed that? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q Can you look at this Exhibit Number E-42 and tell 

IS me --

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: Pardon me, may I have 

the witness on voir dire? He is going to ask 

him questions about how the exhibit was made. 

·THE MASTER: Yes, you may for the purpose 

to see if you have an objection to it. 

MR. MITCHELL: For that, also. 

THE MASl'ER: That is the only purpose. 
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2 

3 

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

BY MR, MITCJJELL: 

i 
I 

4 Q Let me ask you this. The morning report is a 

5 report maintained by you as custodian of the 

6 Company B, Second Battalion records? 

7 A Yes, it is a requirement on regulations that this 

8 form has to be filled out at the end of each 

9 assembly. This t& on weekend assemblies we meet on 

10 This form has to be filled out to determine who 

11 was absent and who was present, and any events 

12 that happened during the month, promotions, 

13 reductions and discharges. It is a permanent 

14 record. 

15 Q And that record is under your custody and control? 

16 A Yes, sir. 

17 Q When Mr, Flusche, or a member of the Attorney 

18 General's staff contacted you, tell the Court how 

19 you made the extract. 

~ A I have the copies of the morning reports and I have 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

it for the period mentioned, January, 1972, to 

Septembei, 1973, and I went through all the morning 

reports on a monthly basis. It was held monthly 

and I reported the information as to whether the 

man was present or where he was at that time. 
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2 

3 

4 

s 

6 

7 

B 

9 

10 

II I' I 
d 

12 
rl 

:I 
'I 

13 !I 
lr 

14 

IS 

18 

!7 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Who algnr. the m-:>rn1.n!" report? 

A The company :ommander. 

~ Is it based on a vtsual personal lnspectton7 

A Yes. 

Q Is it i~ the handwriting of the company commander? 

A No, 1t ls type1. 

Q 1 am trying to find out how the morntng roport is 

made up. Would tt be signed by Mr. Elizondo? 

A No. 

Q How is it made up customarily? 

A I am the First Sergeant and I am also the full-time 

employee and I get all of the information for that 

from the assembly and I type the information and 

it is viewed by the company commander and signed 

by hiru. 

Q But tre morning report is the document from which 

you got your information, or is it? 

A Well, I don•t know if I •tnderstand your question. 
I 

The morning report is the report that is made out, I 
like I said, originally, to record all the events, 

record all the people that were absent, and it ! 
doesn•t record the people present. It records thos 

absent only. 

Q I want to know who actually looks out there and sees 

who is not there. 
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I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A I do. 

Q So, yo11 can tell this CJurt you made a vtsua 1 

inspection and from that inspection this data was 

put on the report? 

A The way I make the report is by going back to 

the reports I made originally. We have what we 

call a formation and I call the role and I 

record the people who were absent and the ones 

present and from there I base this information on 

the morning report. 

Q And from that, you made the summary report here? 

A Yes, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: The only objection we 

have on the offer would be on the hearsay 

aspect of it as to Judge Carrillo. 

THE MASTER: Well, it has not been 

offered. 

MR. MITCHELL. He was getting ready to 

ask him questions from it and probably I 

jumped the gun. 

MR. FLUSCHE: I will offer it at this 

time. 

MR. MITCHELL: We object on the grounds 

of hearsay and not being properly 

authenticated. 
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THE MASTER: The objection is overruled 

2 and the exhibit is admitted. 

3 

(Examiner's Exhibit 42 was admitted into 
4 

evidence.) 
5 

6 

7 CONTINUED EXAMINATION 

8 

BY MR. FLUSCHE : 
9 

10 Q Mr. Valadez, the first entry on this report is 

II in 1972. Can you tell whether Roberto Elizondo 

12 was present at that time? 

13 A At this time Roberto Elizondo was attend1ng an 

14 NCO academy. He at tended on the 4th and 5th of 

15 Decemb8r, in 1972, in 11eu of the 8th and 9th 1n 

16 1972. 

17 Q So he was not present at that time? 
J 

~· A No, he was present on the 4th and 5th of D~cember. 

~ Q How about in 1973? 

~ A He was still in the NCO academy and was present 

21 on the 15th and 16th of January in lieu of 

22 February 15th. 

~ Q Let's go next to March, 1973. 

~ A He was present at Allee on the 15th and 16th and he 

25 was again present on the 8th and 9th of April, 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

a· 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1972, in Robstown. 

\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
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Q (By Mr. Flusche:) All right, no>~, on the 29th and 

2 3Jth of April~ 

3 A The 29th and 30th of Apr 11 he was present in 1\lice. 

4 Q The 3rd and 4th of June? 

5 A The 3rd and 4th of June he was also present in 

6 Alice. 

7 Q Now the 17th of June, 1972, until the 2nd of July, 

8 1972? 

9 A Okay. During this period he was absent during this 

10 period, because of his attendance on the 13th of 

11 August of 1 72 to the 26th of August of 172 at the 

12 annual training at Ft. Walters, Texas. 

~ Q Now, how about the 15th and 16th of July, 1972? 

~ A All right. He was present at the Armory, he was 

15 present in Alice. 

16 Q All right. And on the 12th of August of 1972? 

17 

18 

19 

A Okay. On the 12th of August of '72 he performed 
J 

E.T. and on the 6th of August he performed E.T. 

in lieu of the 12th of August or the 6th of August 

of '72. 

21 Q And E.T. means --

~ A It means equivalent training. 

~ Q And where did that take place on the 6th of August, 

24 1972? 

25 A In Alice. 
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- --~- -- ----- ---------

1 i Q ]1 Alicery 

2 ' A Yes, sir, 

760 t 
the 26th of Augu•t 

1 

3 Q NJw, on the 13th of August until 

4 of 1972, where was he present? 

5 A He was present at Ft. Waltem,Texas. That is when 

6 he attended the annual training. 

7 Q Okay, And now from the 9th of September-- on the 

8 9th and lOth of September of '72? 

9 A On 9 September '72 be was present in Alice; 

10 14 and 15th of October, '72, he was present in 

11 Alice, On the 4th and 5th of November he was 

12 present in Alice; 9th and lOth of December of 

13 172 he was present in Alice; 20th and 21st of 

14 January he was present in flice; 10 and 11th of 

15 February of '73 he was also present in Alice; 

16 17 March, '73' and 18 March he was present in 

17 Alice; 8th and 9th of April of '73 he was present 
J 

18 in Alice; 5 and 6 May he was also present in Alice; 

19 17 June to 1 July he attended the annual training 

·~ at Ft. Chaffe, Arkansas. 

21 Now, on the 14th and 15th of July of '73, he 

~ was also present in Alice; 11 and 12th of August 

23 ·of '73 he was present in Alice; 15 and 16 of 

24 

25 

September, '73, he was present in Alice and that 

is it. 
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* 
------ ---------~ ---~ 

•.; All right. 

2 A 
II 

3 it 
Q 

II 4 A 

That was the i.nformat!.on thot --

All right. 

That is up to date. 
II 

5 Q. Let me ask you this: Is it a true statement that 

6 each of these two-day periods here, the 14th and 

7 15th of October, are weekends? 

8 A Yes, sir, 

9 Q Saturdays and Sununys? 

10 A Saturdays and Sundays. 

11 Q. A 11 r lght. 

12 MR. FLUSCHE: I believe that•s all I 

13 have. 

14 THE WITNESS: I might point out 

15 something else, sir, that some of these 

16 assemblies here like I will have to go back 

17 and determine which are the ones that are 

18 overnight training and which are the ones 

19 that are just until 5 o'clock on saturday; 

20 you see there are some that are --

21 MR. FLUSCHE: I don't believe we need 

22 to go into that in detail. 

23 MR. MITCHELL: I will ask you about 

24 those, Sergeant. 

25 

~~~---------------------------------~ 
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2 
BY MR. MITCHELL: 

3 

4 Q Sergeant, Exhibit Number 42, so the record is 

5 completely accurate, reflects meeting dates that 

6 were attended by Roberto Elizondo for the times 

7 indicated. For example, on the first sheet 

8 January the 8th and 9th? 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q Now, I want to ask you first of all, how many times 

11 a month were these meetings held for persons who 

12 were -- what would you call that Spec 4, is that a 

13 rating? 

14 A That is hls rating. 

15 Q I was a Navy man and you•ll have to bear with me. 

16 Is that an Army rating? 

17 A That is an Army rating, yes, sir. 

18 Q. All right. At any rate, it indicates that Spec 4 

" Roberto Elizondo attended once a month and I 

20·· suppose is that a regular, usual and customary 

21 A Yes, sir. 

22 Q Consequently, this Exhibit 42 would not be a 

record of what he did on other weekends? 

24· A No, sir. 

25 Q And in addition, I suppose, as indicated by your 
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explanation made at the termination of your direct, 

2 that it would not indicate, for example, those 

3 instances when Mr. Elizondo would be finished on 

4 Saturday at 5 O'clock and would be free? 

s A That is true. 

6 Q And in addition 

7 MR. MITCHELL: Strike that. 

8 Q In addition, the record of 42, would show that in 

9 each and every wee:c;;nd he was in Alice, Texas, 

10 except the times when he was in annual training at 

11 Ft. Walters on the 13th day of tugust of 1972 

12 to the 26th day of August of '72 and on the 17th 

13 day of June, '73, to July ls t, '73, when he was 

14 at Ft. Chaffe, Arkansas? 

15 A Yes, sir. 

16 Q And how far is it, how far is Alice from San Diego? 

17 A Ten mlles. 

18 Q Thank you • 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: I have no further 

questions, Judge. 

MR. FLUSCHE: That is all. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, Sergeant 

Valadez, you are excused and free to go. 

MR. ODAM: We call as the next witness 

Mr. Saenz. 
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3 
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6 

7 

JOSE H, SAENZ, 

having been duly sworn by the Court, testified 

as follows: 

BY MR, FLUSCHE: 

8 Q Will you state your name, your full name, please, 

9 sir? 

10 A J ,se H. Saenz, sir. 

11 Q And where do you live? 

12 A San Diego, Texas, sir. 

13 Q And how are you employed? 

14 MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Your Honor. 

15 I would like to informthe Court that this 

16 witness is my client and at this point I 

17 am going to inform him of his right to plead 

18 the rights given by the Constitution, 

19 precluding testimony which directly or 

20 indirectly suggests the ~ommission of an 

. 21 offense under the Fifth Amendment and ask 

22 ~he witness to make that plea at this point. 

23 Do you have the 

24 A I respectfully refuse to answer on the grounds that 

25 it might tend to incriminate me. 
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Q Let me ask you this, Mr. faenz. On the 15th day of 

2 July of 1975, did you testify in Austin, Texas, 

3 before the H"Juse Select Committee on Impeachme.nt? 

A I respectfully decline to answer on the grounds 

5 that it might tend to incrimihate me. 

6 Q During the course of your testimony, before the 

7 House Select Committee on July 15th, did the House 

8 Select Committee grant immunity to prosecution to 

9 you? 

10 A I respectfully decline to answer on the grounds 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

.18 

19 

20 

22 

23 

24 

25 

of what I say might tend to incriminate me. 

MR. ODAM: Can we have just a minute, 

Your Honor? 

THE MASTER: Yes, sir. 

MR. ODAM: In light of.his testimony. 

(Discussion off the record,) 

MR. FLUSCHE: Your Honor, I would call 

the Court's attention to Section 14 of 

Article 5966A and ask the Court to grant 

this witness immunity from prosecution and 

to then instruct him to answer the 

ques t:ions. 

(Dlncussion off the record') 
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THE MASTER: What do you think the 

2 l procedure is, Mr. Flusche; that I order 

3 him to testify and if he continues to 

refuse, then you file or I file a petition 

5 to compel him to testify in any District 

6 Court? 

7 MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, sir. 

8 THE MASTER: And that District Court 

9 does what? Then that Court orders the 

10 witness to appear and if he refuses, he is 

11 punished as for contempt? 

12 MR. FLUSCHE: That is right. 

13 THE MASTER: But if he testifies, he 

14 ~~ granted immunity from prosecution? 

15 MR. FLUSCHE: I would say it would be 

16 transactual immunity, use immunity. 

17 MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, as attorney 

18 for the witness, I make the statement to the 

19 Court that it is not our intent to stand in 

20 contempt of this Court -- this Master or any 

21 Court, but for the purposes of the Court 

22 ·ruling in this matter, I would like to 

23 

24 

25 

inform the Court that this witness has been 

indicted in the case of State of Texas versus 

Jose Saenz in Cause Number 2940 in the 79th 
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District c~urt in Alice, Jim Wells County, I 
I 

Texas, and would be sworn to that effect so I 
that it becomes known as a part of the record, 

I represent the witness in this 

case and with that background, Your Honor, 

the question is in our mind, first, who can 

grant the immunity and the form of the grant 

in the face of the indictment. 

MR. FLUSCHE: What is the date of the 

indictment? 

MR. MITCHELL: The date of the indictment, 

Mr. Flusche, was after the testimony you have 

referred to in Austin and before, of course, 

today • 

MR. FLUSCHE: Y:Ju don't have the 

indictment? You don•t have the date of the 

indictment? 

MR, MITCHELL: No, I don't have the exac 

date. I would otherwise --

MR. ODAM: May I inquire what he was 

1nd ic ted for? 

MR. MITCHELL: General indictment of 

theft above two hundred dollars and under 

MR. SAENZ: Ten thousand dollars. 

MR. MITCHELL: Ten thousand, yes. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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Arraignment has been set, Your Honor, on this 

indictment on November the 2)th --

MR, SAENZ: The 21st. 

MR. MITCHELL: The 21st, of 1975, before 

the Honorable Judge Woodrow Laughlin, Judge 

of the 79th District Court in Jim Wells 

County, Texas. 

MR. FLUSCHE: All right. In that event, 

I think that we are going to have to confer 

with the District Attorney of Jim Wells 

County before we go any further. 

THE MASTER: You withdraw your 

request? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Can we have a minute? 

THE MASTER: You can have all the time 

you want, yes, sir. 

(Discussion off the record,) 

MR. FLUSCHE: Let me ask you this, Mr. 

Mitchell. was he indicted for an offense 

growing out of the testimony which he is 

likely to give in this case? 

MR. MITCHELL: I am suggesting that, 

yes, there is an interweaving -- that they 

are inexorably intertwined; that is all 
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of the testimony is that that which he has 

previously given and the testimony 

supporting the indictment and that is my 

problem, Y~ur Honor, that we now have an 

indictment and that is, of course, the 

question of immunity when there is an 

indictment, there is a very serious question 

whether it can be a granting of the 

immunity which Mr. Flusche recognizes since 

he wants to talk to the District Attorney. 

THE MASTER: I don't think that's why 

he wants to talk to the District Attorney. 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. FLUSCHE: Why don't we temporarily 

ask that this witness be excused and I'll 

call my next witness. 

THE MASTER: All right. What is his 

situation? Do you want him standing by? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Step down at this time, 

but you are still under subpoen~. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, may I state in 

this connection, the Court was reading from 

a section of the statute and I am sorry, I 
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mlssed that section as regards the 

involvement of the District Court, and I 

might be incorrect 

THE MASTER: Section 8. 

MR. MITCHELL: I see, I envisioned the 

grant of immunity being governed by 14, 

which will -- the grant will have to come 

from the commission of immunity, Judge 

Meyers. 

THE MASTER: I read it as being 

automatic; how did you read it? 

MR. FLUSCHE: I read it as being 

automatic. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, I read the statute 

as saying it is automatic, Judge Meyero, but 

I read the cases as saying where a 

transactual immunity is involved, that the 

grant must be specific and must be signed 

by the officer granting, for example, it 

can't be the attorneys. It has got to be 

somebody that is recognized. 

And while I don't want to quibble 

or quarrel down the line with that grant, 

and while I am offering the testimony, if I 

get my grant -- if the grant is conferred cy 
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law, I am suggesting that this inquiry will 

further include the total grant in the form 

that complies with the Supreme Court of the 

United States requirements in the face of the 

offense in twenty-nine forty, plus in face 

of the offense suggested by his testimony 

previously given in the House Committee on 

Impeachment, because they are intertwined. 

They go broader than the indictment or may 

not go broader than the indictment. 

MR. ODAM: For the purpose of continuity 

in these proceedings, would Mr. Mitchell 

stipulate that this testimony csnbe given and 

those arrangements attempted to be made, and 

if not ruade, then, it would clearly be 

understood this testimony would not be used? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, I would not. I would 

just notwant to do that for my client. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Would you stipulate that 

he was gran ted immunity by the House of 

Representatives? 

MR. MITCHELL: No, Your Honor, my claim 

for the Court record is that I understand the 

House grant was void, it was not a complete 

grant of immunity, and the pleadings in this 
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case, thnt is that procedure suggests the 

\ 

voidness of those procedures and certainly thd 

voidness of any attempted grant of immunity I 
where one speaks from the subcommittee and 

just says, "We are just going to give you 

immunity." And then proceeds through the 

questions, 

No, we are not going to concede 

that the grant was even correct on that 

level. 

MR, ODAM: Well, it would appear, 

assuming that there are statements in here 

that the House Committee attempted to give 

immunity and therefore, with that under-

standing, the witness testified, 

I don't see how that relates to 

these proceedings now if the witness has been 

granted immunity presuming that it has. 

It seems like that would be raised at a 

later time when this testimony was used in a 

criminal proceeding or what other testimony 

could be used in a criminal proceeding. We 

could just go f~ard. 

MR, MITCHELL: Except, Mr. Odam, if the 

grant is not correctly done, my client hac 
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given up n very valuable right. I say the 

grant of immunity wAs incorrectly granted; 

that the committee had no jurisdiction and 

now that I say there is an indictment, it 

cannot be granted under any circumstances 

in face of the indictment. 

MR. ODA!v!: What 1 1 m saying, if it was 

incorrectly done, you could raise that point 

in the crimin&l proceeding. 

MR. MITCHELL: As indicated and 

demonstrated in the loudest voice that I can 

hear, that is the indictment following it. 

THE MASTER: Well, I suppose to that 

indictment, it would suggest immunity. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, Your Honor, and I 

am faced with the proposition that the grant 

was improperly given, and that is why I am 

making -- taking thi6 position before this 

Court. 

THE !-!ASTER: I understand your position. 

I do not see that it is inconsistent. 

MR. MITCHELL: Sure, the District 

Attorney 

THE MASTER: I think Mr. Saenz should 

go outside. 
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(Where upon, Mr. Saenz left the 

examinlnp; room.) 

~----- --------------
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MR. ODAM: We can do two things. While 

the next witness ts on the stand, I can go 

out and confer, num~er one, wtth the chair-

man of t~e committee to ~rant immunity and 

he can c1o that. Number two, I can confer 

wit~ the district attorney who had this 

indictment and relate that conversation to 

all pre~ent, and if the Master wanted to 

talk with h1m by phone or whatever, we 

could ~et it resolved. 

THE MASTER: Eventually it is goi.nfl; to 

come down to you either insisting first 

that immunity has been !!ranted and my rulinl! 

on that and, secondly, ~f it has not been, 

then the claim of immunity under th~ statute 

and how it is granted. Eventually, if I 

construe that immunity has been or can be 

gr~d. has been granted by the House Sub-

commit~ee or can be granted pursuant to 

this statute, then I direct him to answer. 

If he doesn't and continues to refuse, then 

I ~~titton a district court here to direct 

him to answer and if that court finds the 

subpoena is regularly issued, he orders 

him to answer and If he does not. t~e~ he 
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MR. 11ITCHELL: RiF?;ht. 

THE MASTER: Then you havE' either your 

immunity or you don't have it, is that the 

way it goes, riF?;ht? 

MR, MITCHELL: That is ri~ht. 

TliE MASTER: And incidP-ntally, there 

is no way -- he will have to be in custody 

before you can file your writ. 

MR. MITCHELL: I understand that. In 

line with what Mr. Odam suggested, I will 

suggest that instead of talkitlJ! to the D.A. 

who do~s not have th~ power to grant the 

immunity of anybody else. I suggest we go 

throup.h thE' commiss i.on and I understand they 

can grant it through this Master. 

TqE MASTER: No, I disagree with that 

unless the case law makes it automatic. 

That is thE' position I wtll take. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri.ght. Fi.ne. 

THE MASTER: But what you have to have 

before this man testifies. is, you havE' to 

have an opinion of the Su~reme Court of this 

statement on a writ saying immunity was 

Rranted, 
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MR. !HTCHF.LL: I W8'1t 

2 Court on that, because not many know that. 

3 I '•'ould havp to put him in custody. 

4 THE MASTER: That is right. you have 

5 to put him in custody when you file your 

6 apf)ltcati.m. I think the Supreme Court lets 

7 him out tPmporartly, pendtng the habeas 

8 corpus hearing. 

9 MR, MITCHELL: That is right, 

10 MR. ODAM: Where do we stand now as 

11 far as this witness? Can we call Mr. 

12 Saenz back in? 

13 THE MASTER: It depends on what you 

14 want to do. I thou~ht you were telling me 

15 you wanted to check with that D.A. and let 

16 him know that you werE> about ready to blow 

17 his case out of the water. 

18 We will call Mr. Francisco Rui.z, 

19 

20 

21 

22 FRANCISCO RUIZ, 

~ havin~ been duly sworn by the Court, testified under 

24 oath as follows: 
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BY MR. FLUSCHE: 

Q Will you statP your full name, str? 

A Francisco Ruiz. 

Q Where do you live? 

A B~navides. 

Q How are you employed? 

A I am employed by t~e water district. 

Q Is that the Duval County water district? 

A Yes. 

Q In what city? 

A Benavides. 

Q How lon~ have you worked for the water district? 

A A year and a half. 

Q And prior to that time, where dtd you work? 

A For Duval County. 

Q How were you employed by Duval Cou~ty? 

A I was a welder. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I ask which of 

the articles this witness is offered in? 

MR. FLUSCHE: I bink it is article 4. 

THE MASTER: Yes, that is correct. 

Q . (By Mr. Flusche:) Now, how much money were you 

makin~ as a welder for Duval County? 
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A Take home pay, about three thirty-five. when I 

got out. I started at about one fifty or one 

!'lt"VPnty-five. 

Q What was your gross pay at the ti~t" you got out? 

A Three thirty-five. 

Q Well, I mean the total? 

A Oh, about three seventy-fivt". 

Q All ri~ht. Now, did you tell me when you went to 

work for the county as a welder, when was that? 

A 19SB. 

Q So you worked continuously from 1958 until --

A Until a year and a half back. 

Q So that would be sometime in 1973? 

A Yes, I think. 

Q N~w, ~bile you were employed as a welder for 

Duval County, dirl you have occaskn to work on 

Jud~e Carrillo's ranch? 

MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Jud~e. We 

will object -- I know he ~as not asked the 

question, but w~ will object on non-judicial 

conduct and on formal conduct, 

THE MASTER: You may have those to all 

of this testimony, but they are overruled. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, sir. 

Q (By Mr. Flusche·) Did you ~ave occasion to work 
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on Jud~e Carrillo's ranch? 

7~ 
A Yf!'s, sir. 

Q Did you work on his ranch any prior to the time 

he became a iudge? 

A I don't rememhPr, probably I did. 

Q What kind of work did you do on his ranch? 

A I went to repair the broken down equipment on the 

bulldozers, root olows and root rakf!'s. 

Q What do you mean by a root plow, what kind of 

equipment is that? 

A That is a bi~ deal that goes under the ~round to 

kill brush. 

Q Like mesquite? 

A Yes. 

Q What is a root rake? 

A It is to gather whatever the root plow brings up 

and you gathf!'r it up and burn it. 

Q How frequently did you go to Jud~e Carrillo's 

ranch to do this kind of work? 

A Probably once or maybe two or three ti.mes a month. 

Q Did that frequency continue throughout the entire 

tlme he was a judge and until you terminated your 

employment with the county? 

A Yes. sir. 

Q Now, who would mstruct you to go to the Judge's 
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ranc~ to do this kind of work? 

A Well, sometimes his brother would tell me to go 

and someti.mes he would come over when his bttther 

wAs not there and would say please go. 

Q Do you mean Judge Carrillo would come over him• 

self and ask you? 

A Yes, sometimes. 

Q What would be the period of time you would work 

on the ranch when you would go out to do this 

welding on heavy equipment? 

A Sometimes an hour, maybe two hours. sometimes 

the w"tole dav. 

Q Now, w~at kind of equipment did you use to do 

this welding. was it acetylene or electric? 

A Portable electric welding mac"tine. 

Q Where did you acquire that portable E>lectr-l.c 

welding machine? 

A It belonged to Duval County. 

Q It was the one you used in the perf~rmance of _ 

your dally duties? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q What is the name of the Judge's ranch? 

A Bor1as. 

Q Where is that located? 

A About eighteen miles west or northwest of B~navtdes. 
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Q In Duval County? 

A Yf'S, ~it', 

Q Now, who would dirf'ct you to do work that the 

Jud~e asked you to do? H£> was not thf're to direct 

you. was he? I mf'an, who would tell you what 

piece of machinery to work on? 

A SomPtimes he was there and sometimes Tomas Elizondo 

asked me to do ft. 

Q Was Tomas Elizondo always there? 

A YPS, 

Q How about Roberto Elizondo? 

A Sometimes he "t-•as thf>re 11nd sorof>timf'S he '~as not. 

Q How about Patricio Garza? 

A HP was there all thf> time. 

Q Who was·the boss out there, insofar as you could 

MR. MITCHELL: I have not objected to 

the leadin~ nature of the question, but 

this would be 1-atrsay i.n addi.t1on. 

THE MASTER: I think you maybf> can 

rf>phrase your question. 

Q Do you know who the boss was out there when you 

were asked to do this work? 

A I think it was Tomas Elizondo. 

Q Have you ever seen -- strike that. 
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Wha~ ~ort of compensation dtd you receive for 

2 doing this work at the Judge'R ranch? 

3 A Nothing. 

4 Q You nBPr got any money from the Judge himself? 

5 A No, sir. 

6 Q Dfd you ever Pat out there? 

7 A Yes. sir. 

8 Q Would you say you ate out there qutte a few 

9 times? 

10 A Yeah. 

II MR. FLUSCHE: I believe that ts all 

12 I have. 

13 MR. MITCHELL: May I have iust a 

14 minute, Your H"nor? I would like to review 

15 his testimony ~reviously given under oath 

16 before the Hou~e Sub-committee . 

.17 THE MASTER: Yes. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

1¥ MR, MITCHELL: 
23 

24 Q Mr. Ruiz, I b@lieve the latest time that you went 

25 out to do any work on Judge Carrillo's ranch would 
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be the middle of 1974? 

2 A Maybe so. 

3 Q And you did nothing on the ranch after. I believe, 

4 your previous testimony was, somewhere between 

5 January and June, 1974? 

6 A Yeah. 

7 Q Is that correct, you have not been on the ranch 

8 since then? 

9 A No. 

10 Q Tell us 

11 A You see 

12 Q Did you finish? 

13 A When I quit workin~ with the county, I never did 

14 go back to the ranch. 

15 Q What was that date? 

16 A T can't rPmPmber, it was sometime in March or 

17 Aori 1. 

18 Q Of what year? 

19 A 1974, I think. 

20 Q Youare quite sure you have done no work directly 

21 or indirectly tn the year 1975 for Judge Carrillo? 

~ A No. sir. 

~ Q Now, Mr. Ruiz, are you from Duval County? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

~ Q You were born and raised there? 
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1 
I 

A Yt>~, sfr. 

2 I beliPve, during his ltfetfmP, Jud~e \ Q Ynu knew, 

3 Parr? 

4 A Yes, sir. 

S Q And Archer Parr? 

6 A Yes, sir. 

7 Q And did a considerahlP amount of work on the 

8 Archer Parr and Judge P~rr ranches and other 

9 ranches in the cowmunlty, did younot, i.f re(luested 

10 to do so? 

11 A Maybe, I don't remember. I went to Geor~e Parr's 

12 ranch a couple of times and Archer Parr's ranch 

13 a cou~le of timPs and to the Judge's ranch Quite 

14 a few t jmes. 

IS Q I am not su~ges tf n~ any wron~dofng, but I am 

16 asking you, you d~d work with the same weldinp, 

17 equipment for other peoule i_n the county, not 

18 only Judge Carrillo? Yo~ did the Molina ,ob, 

19 didn't you? 

20 A Who? 

21 Q W~ldinp, on the Molina Ranch? 

22 A .Sir? 

23 Q How shout Mr. Coulinp,? 

24 A No, sir. 

25 Q You are relatPd to Mr. Coul tn!!? 
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A 

_!I 
2 Q Who else besides Archer end George Parr did you 

3 do work for with the welding equipment owned by 

4 the water district? 

5 THE MAS'IIR No, the county. 

6 Q I thought you said you were an employee of the 

7 watt>r district. 

8 THE MASTER: He is now. 

9 MR. MITCHELL: I am sorry. 

m Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) At the time you did the work 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

in 1974. you were a county employee? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q You did work for other persons in the county and 

in the water district with that same welding 

equipment prior to the time you left that employ-

ment, didn't you? 

A Yes, once or twice for the water district. I 

was sent by the commissioners. I didn't get paid 

e i. ther for that. 

Q Well, let mE' ssk you this. This is mainly for 

my information and for the record, but would the 

commissioners of the various orecirrts ask you to 

do work in the county for other persons? I 

mean, Ramiro Carrillo would ask you to po do 

work on a ranch and you would do it? 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

'I _JL -------- ------------. 7 R 7 

:I 
I 

:I 
I. 
I· 
ij 
i: 
II 
II 

II 
I 
I 

II 

Q Who w~re th~ ot~Pr commi~sfonPrs in th~ 1974 ~ertod? 

A Juan L~al 

Q Would you do work at his r~quest? 

A No, only by Rsmiro Carrfllo. 

Q HP was s commi!ll!ioner? 

A Yes. 

Q Who would s~nd you to the Archer Parr rsnch? 

A Ramiro CRrrfllo. 

Q And for Geor~e Parr? 

A Ramiro Carrillo. 

Q That would be prior to the year 1974. is that 

cnrrect? 

A Maybe, yes. 

Q You c~n recall -- when was the last time you 

worked on the Archer Parr ranch? 

A 73, I ~uess. 

Q All rt~ht. And the Geor~e Parr place. when was 

the last time you worked on it with the weldlne 

equipment? 

A Snmetime in 1971. I went once. 

Q Now, do you know Mr. Molina, the ex-deputy sherfff? 

A Molina? 

Q Yes, you made a headache rack for him. 

A Yes, that is rt~ht. I remember. 
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6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

0 Wh~n was that? 

A I can't remember. 

Q Well, it would have been during the time you 

were workin~ for the county? 

A Yes, I was working for the county. 

Q Now, 1 r.dll ask you some additional questions 

then. Can we say that ortor to --

, .. 1 

I 

THE MASTER: LPt's use the word before. 

Q Before 1974 -- strike that. 

I believe your Parli~er tf'sttmony was you 

have done no work for JudgP Carrillo since the 

first part of 1974? 

A Whenevf'r I got out of the county. 

Q Whatever that date was? 

A Yes, I can't rf'member the datf'. 

Q DurinR the time you were workinp for the county. 

how often would you go the Judge's ranch? 

A Maybe sometimes once a month, maybe two or three 

ttmes a month. 

Q In other words, you are suggesting there would 

be no fi~Pd period, it was irregular? 

A No. 

Q I am curious as to how you would have welding to 

do on the ranch two or three times a month. 

Could you not do it all on one visit? 
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3 
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;i 

6 
1: 
I 
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7 .I 

:I 8 
I 

9 I 
I 

10 I 
: 

11 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

7R9, 
-~---------- ---------------- -----------r 

A WPll. vou see, t~At equinment doesn't hreak all 

~ onP t i mr. MayhP it brPak~ today And then it 

~oe~ two or thrPe days later and it mi~ht breAk 

apatn, the same thine, nr ~omethi~ maybe different. 

Q So you would Po a~ the pquiomPnt broke down7 

A YPs. 

Q And would that bP true on the~e othPr pPoplP's 

ranc~Ps, that i~. they would rAil you when the 

P~uipment wR~ bro~en7 

A Yes, when the equipment broke down, I would go. 

Q When you went out to the ArrhPr Parr or Gecr~P 

Parr ranches or did the work for Judge Carrillo 

or Ramiro Carrillo or Mr. Molina, was there 

anything wrong, as far as you were concerned, 

dotn~ that work? 

A WPll, I had to do what I was told. 

Q Well, you did the work on your own ranch with 

that same welding equioment wh;lP you were a 

county employee, didn't you? 

A Yf's. 

Q You didn't think that was wron~? 

A I asked permission from thf' commissioners. I 

did it on my vacation. 

Q You used thP same POU f_ OIIIP nt to do work on your 

ranch? 
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-ct~ A 

I 

Yt>s. sir. 

2 I 
Q You used it to do work on the Molina ranches and 

3 
the Carrillo rancht>s and the Parr ranches and for 

4 who else? 

5 A Nobody else, I guess. 

6 Q Well, would you say, knowing the situation, that 

7 it was a usual and customary situation, as you 

8 ~e employed hv the county, that you would go out 

9 and ass~ the various people who are residents of 

10 the county to do the welding you did do? Would 

11 you say that was a custom? 

12 A Probably was. 

13 Q And as a matter of fact. no inquiry was made prior 

14 to today or uo at Austin as to whether or not the 

15 work was done or wasn'~ done? 

16 A No. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

---------------------- -----
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-----~------------------------------------------~~1~-+-

Q Now, :i had a lU:tle problem, Mr. R1l1z 

MR. MITCHELL: Out of fairness to you, 

I am looking at page 129 of his testimony, 

Mr. Flusche, before the House Select 

Committee on Impeachment and I am compelled 

to simply ask the witness to make an 

explanation, if he can. Do you have it in 

front of you? 

MR. FLUSCHE: What volume do you ha ve7 

MR, MITCHELL: Volume Roman II, page 

129, line 18. 

MR, FLUSCHE: I don 1 t have that Roman II 

here. 

MR. MITCHELL: Let me show you what it 1 

(Discussion off the record,) 

Q {By Mr. Mitchell:) You recall your testimony in 

Austin, do you not, Mr. Ruiz? 

fl Yes, sir. 

~ I believe that you were asked by Mr. Castor, see 

if I read this correctly. I am reading from 

Volume two, page 129, line 18~ Were you asked, 

"When you were working for the county, did you ever 

go to anybody else's ranches and weld their 

equipment." And your answer, then, under oath was, 

. 
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"No." 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q Am I correct? 

4 A Yes, sir. 

s Q. Then you were asked, "The only ranch you ever went 

6 to and welded --, '' "I used to go to the commlssione 's 

7 ranch and weld" and then a paragraph, then the 

8 question, ".Anybody else's ranch in the entire 

9 county?" "No." 

10 That, of course, is inconsistent with the 

11 testimony today that you did occasionally work for 

12 other people on other people 1 s ranches such as 

13 .Archer ~rr and George Parr and your own folks for 

14 that matter. 

15 Now, which is correct, what you testified today 

16 or what you testified to up there in ustin? 

17 .A How is that? 

18 Q Which is the correct testimony, what you .told us 

19 here today? 

20 .A Yes, sir. 

21 Q Okay. 

22 MR. MITCHELL: I have no further 

23 questions of this witness -- wait just a 

24 

25 

minute, excuse me, Judge, I am sorry. 

(Discussion off the record.) 
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Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) In additi0n to this welding 

2 ~n your own place, there W!S other equipment, I 

3 believe, that you have charge of, you had charge 

4 of a maintainer, did you not? You had a maintainer 

5 on your place? 

6 A No. 

7 Q Do you recall that? 

9 Q Do you recall doing work for the members of your 

10 family, your brother-in-law, either welding or 

11 maintaining? 

12 A No. 

13 MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Mr. Ruiz. 

14 I have no further questions. 

15 

16 

17 

18 
BY MR. FLUSCHE: 

19 

~ Q Let me ask you this, Mr. Ruiz. Who is George Parr? 

21 A George Parr was the old man that got -- that shot 

22 himself in Duval County. 

23 Q All right. What was his position in Duval Countv? 

24 A I guess he was the political boss. 

25 Q All right. And what was Archer Parr's positl.on? 
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1\ He WBR the CcJUnty jtldge. 

2 Q. Was ho the nephew of George Parr? 

3 il Yes, str. 

4 Q Was he a part of the political -- of the political 

5 structure of which George Parr was the boss? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q In your testimony here, you testified that you did 

8 

9 

I 
10 I 

I' 
II 'I 
12 II 
13 1 

work for those two people and for Ramtro Carrillo 

and o. P. ~arrtllo And some for yourself. 

Was lt usual and customary in Duval County to 

work with county equipment and county labor ror 

people other than those who were ln a polttlcaJ 

who were tn pollttcal power? 

u A I guess so. 

IS Q Y)u think -- I mean you did work for say laborers, 

16 and the small people in the county: was that usual 

17 and cua t;omary 1 

U A Well, 1 never did go to any small people. 

~ Q What I am asking you, I don't think you understood 

20 my question, if it was usual and customary to work 

21 like that for the political bosses in Duval County, 

22 isn't that correct? 

D A Yea, air. 

~ Q But not for other people? 

25 A No, air. 
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MR. FLUSCHE: That is all. 

2 

3 

4 R E - E X A M l ! A ~ I Q ~ 

5 

_BY MR, MITCHELL: 
6 

7 Q Well, of course, many other people would come to 

8 the welding shop and use the welding equipment 

9 belonging to the county, didn't they, Mr. Rui~ 

w A I don't believe. 

11 Q You know as a matter of fact people that didn't 

12 sven own ranches and that needed to have a job 

13 done, would feel free to come over there to the 

14 shop and use the equipment? 

15 A Maybe when I was not there, 

16 Q Well, you •re not disputing that that could have 

17 occurred? 

" P I didn't do nothing for them, for nobody. 

~ Q N~w, the political bosses that Mr. Flusche is 

20 talking about, your family, that is, Rudolfo 

21 Couling belonged to that family? 

22 A Yes, 

~ Q And at the time Judge Carrillo undertook to remove 

24 

25 

the Parr people from the Benavides Independent 

School District as well as Archer Parr from county 
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judge, there was a split, and that split developed 

2 between the Parrs and the Carrillos, did it not, 

3 Mr. Ruiz? 

4 A I guess so, I don't know. 

5 Q Sure. 

6 A I don't know nothing about that. 

7 ~ And you and the Couling people are on one side of 

8 that split and the Carrillos now are on the other 

9 side, are they not -- or the faction, political 

10 faction? 

11 A I am on my own, I go my way. 

12 .~, All right. But you know Rudolfo :ouling made a 

13 deal with the federal people and offered testimony 

14 for immunity to escape indictment for about five 

15 indictments or six indictments down there against 

16 Judge Carrillo and Ramiro Carrillo as recertly as 

17 sixty days ago? 

18 I don 1 t know. 

~ Q Y~u don't know what your kinsmen have done? 

~ A I don't know nothing about him. I don't interferP. 

21 with his business and he don't interfere with mine. 

~ Q But you testified against Judge Carrillo yourself 

23 

24 

as recently as the 21st day of May of this year, 

of '75, isn't that correct, in Austin? 

~ A I did what? 
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Q y,u testified in Austin. 

2 A Yes, sir, 

3 Q Against Judge Carrillo? 

4 A Yes, sir, 

5 Q And after the split developed, that is after Judge 

6 Carrillo as the District Judge acting upon the 

7 petition of Arnolfo Guerra to remove Archer Parr 

8 as county judge, Archer Parr in fact named you 

9 to replace Ramiro Carrillo as the commissioner, 

10 d idn 1 t he? 

11 A That •s right. 

12 Q And that threw you directly in opposition to the 

13 Carrillo family for the place on the commissioner's 

14 court. You being -- you claiming the ~sition or 

15 place of Raml.ro Carrillo? 

16 A I wa.sn •t claiml.ng it, 

17 Q But you were appointed to that position by Archer 

18 Parr, is that correct? 

19 A That is up to the commissioners if they wanted to 

20 do it that way, it is all right with me. If they 

21 wanted to put me as president, I would be a 

22 president. 

23 Q Sure, and the fact of the matter is, I believe some 

24 of your khlmen have been appointed or were appointe 

25 by Archer Parr as tax collector of Duval County 

I 
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8 

since that split, am I r1ght7 

2 A Who? 

3 Q YJur sister, as a matter of fact, your sister-in-law 

4 is the tax collector and was made tax collector after 

5 that split? 

6 A I don·t know, She's tax collector. I don't know 

7 who appointed her. 

8 Q All right, But the political pull and tug, the 

9 poltiical fight still goes on in the county between 

10 the old Parr faction and the Carrillo faction, 

11 isn't that correct? 

12 A I don•t know. 

13 Q All right. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: I have no further 

questions, Judge Meyers. 

THE WITNESS: I am not a politician. 

MR. FLUSCHE: I think I have no further 

questions. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr. Ruiz, you 

may step down and you are finally excused. 

THE WITNESS: 'rhank you, sir. 

THE MASTER: You can go back to your 

business. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Thank you, 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

ll 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

r.m. ODAM: May I see the statute that 

;you 

THE MASTER: I gave it back to Mr. 

Flusche. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, I checked with 

the District Attorney's office in Jim Wells 

County and satisfied myself that Mr. Saenz 

is not under indictment for any testimony 

to which he ~auld testify in these proceeding • 

Therefore, I have satisfied myself that lf 

the witness had to testify at all, pursuant 

to questions I would ask him, he would nQt 

come close to the matters indicted there. 

So, in my opinion, that indictment 

does not pertain to these proceedings. In 

my judgment, we are in a situation where we 

have two things: Number one, the general 

grant of immunity by the House, and 

probably more importantly, and we can set 

that aside and come more specific to this 

situation that is under the s1Btute Section 

14 i~munity granted by this Master. 

What I would request is back to 

our original request that Mr. Saenz be 

instructed by the Master to testify and to 
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17 
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23 

24 

2S 

800 

produce such document or thing pursuant to 

Section 14 with the understanding that when 

required to do so under the provision of 

Section 8 here over his prior claim of 

privilege against self-incrimination or his 

right not to testify that it would be my 

understanding that that person shall not be 

subject to indictment or prosecution for 

any transaction, matter or thing concerning 

which he truthfully testified or produced 

evidence, document or otherwise. 

I would respectfully request we 

recall the witness and renew our request 

to The Master that the witness be instructed 

to testify and see what develops from there. 

THE MASTER: Well, I think we can 

predict what will develop and so let's just 

do our predicting. 

I predict that he will, under 

instructions of counsel, continue to assert 

his Fifth Amendment rights and then will you 

ask me to petition the District CJurt, and 

1f so, which District Court? 

MR. ODAM: Well, I would request that 

pursuant to Section 8 that the Master shoul~ 
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Bn 

retl_tlor. a distrtct c0•ut tn Corpus Christi 

a~d Nueces County ~d along those ltnes, I 

have taken the liberty of checking to see 

what jJ.dges are available, when I was 

upstairs in the District Attorney's office. 

And I ask that The Master petition 

a District Court in Nueces County for an 

order compelling such person to testtfy 

before The ?-1c.ster, period. 

THE MASTER: When do you think thls 

should be accomplished? 

MR. ODAM: I think that it should be 

accomplished, I would say, immediately, but 

my only concern in saying that le that I do 

not want to unduly delay these proceedings. 

THE MASTER: My thought is, quite 

frankly, to work on it over the weekend and 

have the hear lng Monday afternoon. 

MR • ODAM: ./\11 right, sir, that will be 

fine. 

THE MASTER: Do you want to move faster 

than that? We may be able to. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Thot wouldn't necessarily 

have to be on the record, would it? 

THE MASTER: Wh'"1 t d0 you mean, on the 

------~---------------------------------------------------------------------r-
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record? 

MR. FLUSCHE: would we have a court 

reporter ~resent? 

THE MASTER: Upstairs? 

HR. FLUSCHE: Yea. 

THE MASTER: I am sure so. It seems to 

me that those are official proceedings in 

that court•s court reporter for all purposes 

including a writ of habeas corpus because 

that is where I am assuml.ng things go the 

way it is outlined. Mr. Mitchell would 

clearly want a court reporter. 

HR. MITCHELL: Sure, Judge. 

THE MASTER: That would be your record 

for the Supreme Court. 

MR. MITCHELL: Right. 

THE MASTER: And I think you guys 

would want it too. That would also be your 

record in the Supreme Court. 

MR. MITCHELL: And, Judge, we might not 

have to go to the Supr~me Court if the Judge 

gives us what I consider is that the matter 

dictates, good, sound immunity on each and 

every point, what I think this man is 

entitled to, and then w·e will be right back 
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over here testtfying. 

2 'M.:R. ODAM: If that ts the case 

3 MR. MITCHELL: But I want full immuntty. 

4 THE MASTER: I don't believe that Court 

5 under the statute has the authortty to grant 

6 the immunity. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: Well, then, Your Honor, 

8 then we might as well face it, if that Court 

9 doesn't have the authority to grant the 

10 tmmunity and I don•t believe the Master has 

11 the authortty --

12 THE MASTER: I don't believe the Master 

13 does, either. 

14 MR. MITCHELL: I don't believe the 

15 Chairman of the House Select Committee has 

16 the authority. 

17 THE MASTER: That is another subject. 

18 Let's don't get of~ into that. 

19 MR. MITCHELL: I'm simply saying, Judge 

20 Meyerr,, if I can get before someone that has 

21 the f:'0~1er to grant me the immunity and be 

satisfied to that effect, then, we won•t go 

23 thts other route. 

24 THE Ml~ STER: I think the immunity is 

25 self-executing, but lt is something to hrlef, 
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obviously, 

Very well, call Mr. Saenz. 

(Jose H. Saenz recalled as a witness, 

having been previously sworn upon his oath 

testiried as follows, to wit:) 

MR. FLUSCHE: ~~uld you mark these 

documents as Exhibits 43 and the following 

numbers. 

(Marked for id~ification by the 

reporter as Exhibits E-43, E-44, E-45, 

E-46, E-47, E-48, E-49 and E-50.) 

EXAMINATION CONTINUED 

BY MR. FLU SCHE : 

18 Q Mr. Saenz, I wtll hand you what has been marked 

19 as Exhibits 43 through 50 and I will ask you 

20 whether or not you recognize those documents. 

21 . A I ra:~pec tfully decline and I' a fuse to answer the 

22 

23 

24 

25 

questions put to me by the commission on the 

ground that the answer might tend to inmtminate 

me. I claim this right under the Fifth Amendment 

of the Constitution of the United States and Articl 
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one Secti0n 10 0f the Constitution of Texas, 

(Discussion off the record.) 

}.!TI, F'LUSCHE: Your HJnor, I am going 

to ask the CJurt -- I would like really to 

delay thts procedure until Monday so that we 

m'ght have more time t~ think it through. 

THE MASTER: I tnink that is a fair 

request. 

r-m. FLUSCHE: .So I will ask that this 

~11 tne ss be excused at th!.s tine. 

THE MASTER: I don •t suppose yJu mP-a.n to 

be ~xcuRed, but just that he stay under the 

subpoena. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: To stay in attendance and 

return to the court when you are summoned. 

THE WITNESS: Can I leave now? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Are you available by phone? 

TlF WI'JNESS: Yes, sir, I amat the 

office every day. 

THE MASTER: You are still subject to 

subpoena and I will let you go back, but you 

understand that you are still under subpnena. 
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THE WITNESS: Fine, thank you, sir. 

(Whereupon, Mr. Saenz, the witness, 

left the hearing room. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Could we recess now, 

Your Honor? 

THE MASTER: we are within two minutes 

of rece&s time. Do you want to recess until 

12 so .You can get your stuff together? 

HR. FLUSCHE: 15 minutes is fine. 

THE MASTER: All right. We will be in 

recess until 11:55. 

(Whereupon, the heming was in recess 

from 11:40 a.m. until 11:55 a.m.) 
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THF. MASTER: Conttnu~, g~ntlem~n. 

MR. ODAM: Your Hnnor, if I might, 

nursuant to the comm~nt we madE' E-arl i.er, 

we are now moving to a new paragraph tn our 

pleading and that is paragraph 5 on page 5. 

As I stated earlier, we have alleged here 

the ~videnc~ would be Judge Carrillo obtained 

the privatE' benefit of Oscar SPnchez, a 

county employee, and also used county equip-

ment. None of thiR was at the expense of 

Judge Carri_llo. 

We call as our first witness, Oscar 

Sanchez. 

MR. MITCHELL: May I note for the 

record that at the prior testimony of this 

witness, he testified through an interpreter, 

and I suggest we have an interpreter for 

this time. 

1HE MASER: All right. Do we have 

an interpreter here? 

MR. FLUSCHE: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Abarca, if you wi.ll, 

raise your hand and I will swear you fi.rst. 

MR. ABARCA: All right, sir. 

(The interpreter was sworn by the Court 
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to rorrpctly interprPt from English to 
2 

Soanish the questtons and from Spanish to 
3 

English thf' ansWI!'s of thE' wltnf'ss.) 

5 

6 

7 OSCAR SA~CHEZ, 

8 being duly sworn hv the Court, through thP intProrE"tE"r, 

9 upon his oath tPstified as follows, through thE' inter-

10 pret Pr: 

12 
BY MR, FLUSCHE: 

13 

14 Q Now --

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR, ABARCA: He has asked me if I 

could interprE"t for him only when he does 

not undPrstand? 

THE MASTER: No, I hPlievE" we do better 

:tf ,.,,e proceed Plt:her ,,,holy through the trans-

lator or not t~rou~h him at all. 

THE lHTNESS: Very well. 

THE MASTER: And evPn if Mr. SanchE"Z 

should understand a ~uestion, or thinks he 

does, 1 will ask him to wait until you 

havE' tnterprE"tf'd i.t and then' give his reply 
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THE WITNESS: I 
THE MASTER: ~entlemen, we have a 

profes!li.onal interpreter an<l you ask the 

question directly tn the witness and he 

will interpret verbattm. Keep in mind we 

have a professional, not an amateur. 

Q (By Mr. Fluscll£>:) Will you please state your 

name an<l address. 

A Oscar Sanchez, P. 0. Box 205, Benavi<les. 

Q That fs Benavt<les, Texas? 

A YPs, sir. 

Q An<l w~re are you employe<! at the present time? 

A Ri~ht now with the water <listrict. 

Q Of the Duval County Conservation and R£>clamation 

D~!ltrict? 

Q And how much ar£> you paid at your present employ-

ment? 

A Ri~ht now thPy are payin~ me six hundred per month. 

Q What sort of work do you do for th£> water district? 

A I do operator -- how do you sev it, or oioe fitting 

or what do you call it? 

Q All ri~ht. 

diatrict? 

How lon~ have you worked for the water 
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A A y~Rr and ~ half. 

Q And prtor to that, where did you work? 

A With th~ county, with Duval County. 

Q All right. How much were vou paid when you worked 

for Duval County? 

A Two seventy-five. 

0 And what type of work did you do for Duval County? 

A An ooerator. 

Q Operator of what? 

A Heavv equipment. 

0 Let me ask you this. Have you ever worked on 

the Carrillo Ranch? 

A Sometimes, when they would send m~. 

Q Was that on the Borjas Ranch belonging to J~ge 

0. P. Carrillo? 

A Yes, sometimes, sometimes. 

Q Let me ask you this. Back tn the latter part of 

1971, did yob have occasion to do som~ work on 

Judge Carrillo's ranch? 

A Yes, on one of his ranches, yes. 

Q Who was it that instructed you to reoort for 

work out therP? 

A Ramtro Carrillo. 

MR. MITCHELL: Wp move to strike the 

answer, it is hearsay as to this witness. 
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TH~·~ l'lA ST"ER: OvPrru 1 rd. 

0 Now, what ki.nd of work did you do on the Carrillo 

ranch? 

A A tank full of water for th~ ~ows. 

Q And did t~at involve the usp of heavy equi.pm~nt? 

A Yrs, sir. I went and did it with i.t. 

Q What kind of heavy Pquioment did you usP? 

A It is a big mach4ne, it ts som~thlnv likP a back 

hoe, but thP name of it is grade-all. 

Q Now, who did the back hoe belong to? 

A To the county. 

Q And that was ~t thP same time whPn you werP 

rmoloyed by the county? 

A YPs. 

Q Now, did Judge Carrillo himself ever ask you to 

"'O OUt t 0 tl,~ ranch aro to•ork? 

A No, si.r, he gave Ramlro Carrillo the orders and 

Rami.ro Carrillo gave me the nrdPrs. 

Q Now --

MR, MITCHELL: HParsay, we move to 

strike. 

THE MASTER: Unless that i.s devPloped, 

th~ motion ts good. 

'MR, FLUSCHE: All ris>:ht. 

Tt.tE r-fASTER: And the moti.on is sustained .. 
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MR, FUJSCHE: I undE>rstand. 

812 t 
Q Dfd Jud~e CarrlllQ evE>r ~ay you any money for the 

•ork you did on his ranch? 

A No, sir. 

Q And dtd the Jud~e E>ver give you any gifts or any 

other benefits for doin~ work on hts ranch? 

A Not that I remember, no. 

Q All right. Now, what Is the position of Ramtro 

Carrillo tn the county? 

A HP is county commissioner. 

Q And was he a county commissioner at the tfme he 

instructed you to do this work? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q All rtght. Now, ~~proximately how many hours 

or days were you occupied at the ranch digging 

thf.s •>~~ter tank? 

A Oh, about two days, that is all. 

Q Now, let me ask you one question. 

Do you know of your own know~ge whether 

or not Judge Carrillo instructed Ramiro to order 

you to work at t~e ranch? 

MR. MITCHELL: Still would be hearsay, 

THE MASTER: The ans~ t~ the question 

i ~ or no Then if the next .question is s yp,., • . 
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how do you know and h~ ~ays he was pr~sent 

or somethinp, ltk~ that of course, that is 

THE WITNESS: Will you repeat the 

question? 

Q Do you have pPrsonal knowledg~ that Jud~e Carrillo 

ordered Ramiro Carrillo to hav~ you work at the 

ranch? 

A W~ll, surely, he said it, because they sent me. 

MR. MITCHELL: Now, we move to strike. 

THE MASTER: I will reserve that and 

if there is any further effort, of course, 

if there is not, it ts good. 

Q Did the ranch belon~ to Ramiro or 0. P. Carrillo? 

A It belonged to O.P. 

Q Now, what sort of fuel did you use 

THE MASTER: Pardon me. 

Do you have any questfons bearing on 

hts knowled~ed of whether Juqe Carrillo 

ordered or requested his brother to send 

hi.m out there? 

MR. FLUSCHE: No, sir, I am not going 

to go into that any further. 

THE MASTER: The obircti.on :ls sustained 

as to whether Jud~e Carrillo ordered his. 
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brother to send this witness out to t~e 

2 ranch. 

3 Q (By Mr. Flusche:) Let me ask you this. What sort 

4 of fuel does this machine run on? 

5 A With 28Soline. 

6 Q W~ere did you ~et the ~asoline to operate this 

7 back hoe on thi~ particular occasion? 

8· A At the county shop. 

9 Q Let me ask you thi9. On the occasions when you 

10 went to the ranch to do work on the water tank, 

ll did you see Tomas Elizondo? 

12 MR. MITCHELL: I don't beli~ve the 

13 testimony shows thosp occasi.ons at all, 

14 he said one occasion of two days. 

15 THE MASTER: Two·days, that is correct. 

16 THE WITNESS: No, sir. 

17 Q How about Patricio Garza? 

18 A No, sir. 

19 Q Who wenthe workmen who assi.stPd you in di~~in,z: 

20 thiR watf'r tank? 

21 A I went alone because that machine is operated by 

22 

23 

24 

25 

one operator alone. 
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I Q Nnw, do you ~nnw of your own knowled~e whether or 

2 not Tomas Elizondo or FranciRro Ruiz ever di~ any 

3 work nn the ranch? 

4 
MR. MITCHELL: Excuse me, Your Honor, 

5 the ranch this witness fs talkin~ about, 

6 out of fafrnrss to him, is not the Borjas 

7 Ranch, he is askin~ h~m about the ranch. 

8 There is no testimony in this record about 

9 the North Ranch and I am 1ofng to object. 

10 Th~ Question is not put in a fair 

II context to the witness. It is not the 

12 ranch we have been talkinp about. 

13 THE MASTER : I will 1et him answer 

14 this question but you better identify the 

15 ranch. 

16 A What l<~as the question? 

17 Q Let me ask Y"U if you know of your own kno~1ledge 

18 whether Tomas !ll~ondo, Francfsco Ruiz, Pver did 

19 any work on either one ofthe Judge's ranches? 

·~ A Probably. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: MovE' to strike that, 

of course, ft would be soecu1ation and no 

personal knowledge. 

THE MASTER: And I reserve until h~ 

shows a little better information. 
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H~vP you PVPr ~~en FrancfRro Rui7 doine any work 

on the Judge'~ ranch? 

And what waR the ocr~Rion thAt you saw him ~oinp 

work? What kind of work was he doing for thr 

Judge 7 

Tl-U: MASTER: You want to wi. thdraw t'"la t 

MR. FVJSCHt: Yes, si.r, that is t~•'O 

question!':. 

THE MASTER: 1-lr are d~>alfnp tl-trou~?:h 

an interpreter here and if you would quit 

prt>faclng t'1E'm by, "Lrt m{' 11sk you this." 

MR. FLUSCHE: All right. 

MR. MITCHELL: JudgP Mtoyc>rs, lE't me 

say thts in this break: What he is asking 

"him now goes beyond 5. It has nothing to 

do with the occas1on that the reservoir. 

He was not charging him wtth that. 

THE MASTER: Hr was asking him now 

about Franc1.sco Rui.?. 1 S work. 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Judge, ~ dE"als 

only with this man on one occasion in 

building a rE'Servotr. 

T'tF. MASTER: fl\tt hP is not ltmltPd 
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with thi~ wftnPSS t~ iu~t on~ count. RP 

can prove anything he wants to by t~is 

HR. MITCHELL: I understood t~at was 

hi~ announced purpose. I don't care, Judge, 

I can cross-examine him. I thought we were 

bound by that rule. 

THE MASTER: By what rule? 

MR. MITCHELL: That he announced 

THE MASTF.R: No, he indicated it was 

primarily on 5 but that doesn't preclude 

him from going i.nto ether counts, of coursP 

not. 

MR. MITCHELL: All ri.g~t. 

Q (Ry Mr. Flusche:) Did you ever see Francisco 

do any work on the Judge's work, eit~er one of 

t hPm? 

A Y.es, sir. 

Q What tvpf> of l'•ork did you see hi.m do? 

A Well, Francisco repaired windmills. He built 

wi.ndmlll towers. 

Q Did you ever see him build a windmill tow~r on 

t~e Judge's ranch? 

MR. MITCHELL: StrlkP that as 

I mean obiectton on the grounds of leading, 
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Your HrH'Or. 

2 THE '1ASTE'R: 0vPrru1~>, 

3 HR. MITCHELL: F.xcuse me, Judge, Also 

4 now I want to obiect to the quPstion as 

5 to the time, the place. At le~st give me 

6 the CE'ntury. I don't t"VPn knm~ whAt he ts 

7 talking about. "Did you E'VE>r" and t'lE' 

8 question is so global that I can't --

9 THE MASTER: HP has to ask them onP 

10 at a time, Mr. MitchE"ll. Give htm an oppor-

ll tun tty. The obi ecti on is overrulE-d. 

12 A Y !'8. o:; i r . 

13 Q And approximately when was this? 

14 A Thf' last timP I saw him was about 71 was the last 

15 time or 72 -- I mran 70. about 1970. 

16 Q Did you rver see Tomas Eli?.ondo performing any 

17 labor on thP JudgE-'s ranches? 

18 MR. MITCHELL: Objection to leading. 

19 THE MASTER: Ovl'rrulr>d. 

20 A Yes, sir. 

~ Q And when was thts 7 

~ A WPll, that -- I ,ave seen him, he has worked all 

23 thP tfme there w'th them. 

U Q Do you knnw what Tomas Elizondo's position is on 

25 the Judge's ranch? 
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MR. MITCHELL: It would be hearsay, 

2 we ob~ect. 

3 T'1E 'MASTER: Overruleil. 

4 A Hf' i.s foreman at the ranch. 

5 Q Hl'lve you vfsited the Judge's rancht>s frectuently? 

6 A Long ago, I used to vf.si.t them, yes. 

7 Q WaR that since he became a Judr-e? 

8 A No, before that. 

9 MR. FLUSC !'IE: I helteve that's all wt> 

10 have. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

"BY MR, MITCHELL: 
16 

17 Q Mr. Sanchez. do you know whert> the North Ranch 

18 is? 

~ A Yt>s, si.r. 

~ Q And isn't it a 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: To he sure the witness 

understands my predicate questton, I wi.ll 

ask i.t again. 

THE MASTER: Now, wa-l.t, Mr. Mi.tchell, 

i.t is those sort of preoaratlry remarks that 
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mak~s 't awful difficult to rxamine a 

wttnP~s through an intPrpreter. Can you 

avoid them with this witness? 

Q The Calvin North Ranch, do you know where that is? 

Q Is that ranch different from the Borjas Ranch? 

A Ye~. sir. 

Q And the Calvin North Ranch is the ranch t~ was 

owned by Calvin North whPn you worked on it? 

A No, sir, it was the Jud,P's. 

d When was it that you work~d on the Calvin North 

ranch? 

A The latter part of 71, almost at th~ time that 

72 was coming in, 

Q Mr. Sanchez, who all was there at the time you 

worked on the Calvin North Ranch in the latter 

part of 71 or 72? 

A Well, I don't remember who was there. It could 

be the Jud~e, O.P. 

Q But you do remrmber that that f.s the last time 

that you did any work on the Calvin North Ranch? 

A On that year, yes. 

Q Could it be that the work was done in 1968? 

24 A Well, I dn't think so, because in 70 I had a 

25 brand new car. I would ~o over there and there 
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is a cattl~~uard th~re and I broke 

2 0 Did you do any work on othPr ranches other than 

3 thP North Ranch, Mr. SanchPz, beyond the y~ar 1971? 

4 A After 71, I don't remember hwin~ done any. 

s Q In fact, you previously tpstified --

6 MR. MITCHELL: Let me see if I can 

7 handle that better. 

8 Q You previously testified undPr oath in Austin 

9 that that was the last time you did any work for 

10 Ramiro Carrillo, Judge Carrillo, was in 19 -- 1971. 

11 A Around that, more or less, because that was when 

12 I quit the county for the first time -- when I 

13 quit workin~ for the county. 

14 Q And tt is your testimony today that it could not 

15 have bePn as Parly as 1968 that you did th~ work? 

16 A Well, I don't remember about that, but I am sure 

17 no, I am not sure. 

n Q Could it have been as early as 1965? 

19 A Well. I have ~one many times that I do not remem-

20 ber. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: May I mark this series 

of photo~raphs, please? 

(Marked for identification by the 

reporter as Exhibits R-26 throu~h. R-42.) 
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Q Mr. Sanchez, I hand you what has been marked 

as Exhibit R-40 and ask you if you recognize your 

pictur~:>? 

A YPs, sir. 

Q And t~ that the tank in the background? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q And ts that the 

A A part of tt. 

Q An~ is that the occasion in question about which 

you ~ave be~:>n testifyin~? 

A Yes, sir, it {s at his ranch. 

Q And do ynu recogntze who else is in the picture? 

A Yes, sir. 

Q Who? 

A 0. P. 

Q And 

A And Carlos Herrera. 

Q I hand you R-41 and ask you if you recognize it. 

A YPs, !lfr. 

Q Does it sppf'ar to be a ptcture taken the same 

day at thf' same place? 

A· It could be. 

Q Who is in the picture, do you recognize them? 

A 0. P. and Patricio. 

Q You recognize them as the pPople t~e on that 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

day Mr. SanchPz? 

A The ~ersons I do know, that on that day, these 

o~rsons wer~ not there. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, pardon me, for 

the purposes of the ouesti.on, he said 

Patricio, could he identify the last name 

of Patri_cio? 

THE MASTER: Yes. 

A Garza. 

MR. ODAM: Thank you. 

Q I will hand you R-26 and ask you if you recognize 

the ~ersons in that picture? 

A Ye, sir. 

Q Who are they? 

A Carlos Herrera and I. 

Q You reco~nize that ~icture as being taken on the 

day that you testified to as doing the work on 

the North Ranch? 

A No, sir. 

Q In view of your testimony that the last time 

you did work on the North Ranch or any ranch 

owned by Judge Carrillo or Ramiro Carrillo was 

sometime in 1971, could you tell us on what 

occasion that picture was takPn? 

A They took this picture when Carlos Herrera came 
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th~rP and started th~ pit with the maintainer. 

2 Q For thP tank? 

3 
A But they did not make it deep enou~h to hold the 

4 water. 

5 Q So tl-tat the back hoe camE> out and made H deeper? 

6 A YE>s, sir. 

7 Q And that was, in fact, in 1965? 

8 A ThiR one.(wftness indicatin~ Exhibit R-26.) 

9 Q Yt!'s. 

10 A Thfs one. (Indtcatin~ R-26.) I do not remember 

11 what date it was on, nor what year. 

12 MR. MITCHELL: I ek thE' t.ritness to 

13 
move to the photo~ranh directly underneath 

14 i.t showin~ ti-e pickup truck and idPntify it 

15 by number for the record. 

16 MR. ABARCA: Exhibit R-41. 

17 MR. MITC~ELL: I will ask the witness 

18 to look at that picture and see if the 

19 license plate on that truck 

20 MR. ABARCA: Would you df.rect your 

21 Question directly to him? 

~ Q Mr. Sanchez, would you look at th8t pickup, bein~ 

23 

24 

25 

R-41, and do you observe a license plate on the 

nf_ckuo? 

A Yes,_ Rir. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTEI..OPE • GUARANTY BANK PlAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl. TEXAS 78401 



OLJ 

Q Can you rPad the date on that l{censP plate? 

2 A No, I cannot see that much. f_t is too little. 

3 Q All rt~ht, I ~and you, Mr. Sanchez, R-27 and see 

4 if you reco~nize that aR bein~ a picture of Mr. 

5 North. 

6 A Yes, I do know tt. 

7 Q And, 89 a matter of fact, Mr. North was ther that 

8 day that you tPstified to that you took the back 

9 hoe and did thE' work that you have told us about? 

10 A No, sir. 

11 Q h it -- are you testi.fyin~ that he was not there 

12 or that you d i_d not see him? 

13 A Ht> was not there. 

14 Q But thE:' picture is of Mr. North, is tt not, 

15 Mr. Sanchez? 

16 A Yeq. 

17 

18 

19 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: May I have 1ust a 

second. 

(Discussion off the record.) 
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MR. MITCHELL: We would offer 

Exhibits 26, 27, 40 and 41. 

MR. ODAM: We would object to the 

entrance of these photographs on the basis 

of authentication as to who took them, when 

they were taken, and number three, as to 

where they were taken. This witness, by 

his testimony, has at best confused the 

issue as to time: has not totally identified 

when they were taken, so we object to those 

on authentication. 

THE MASTER: The objection is overruled 

and those are admitted. 

(Respondent's Exhibits 26, 27, 40 and 

41 were admitted into evidence.) 

17 Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Mr. Saenz, do you know George 

18 Zertuche? 

19 A Yes. 

~ Q Do you know his son, Arturo Zertuche? 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

Yes. 

And his son, Hector Zertuche? 

Yes. 

How long 

Oh, about 

have you known these gentlemen? 

12 years ago or 15 years ago. 
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Q Arturo Zertuche ts what aged man today? 

2 A Arturo, well, I don't remember, I don't remember 

3 what age he has. 

4 Q And you, of course, are related to Ruben Chapa, 

5 are you not? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q I believe Ruben Chapa has been a prtor witness tn 

8 these cases and testified in Austin and here tn 

9 Corpus Christi, is that correct? 

IO P Yes, sir. 

11 Q And about what aged man is Ruben Chapa today? 

12 A Well, I don •t know, that I do not know, because 

13 I have never noticed their age. 

14 Q would you say the man is in his late 20's or 30's? 

15 A About 25, 26, maybe 27. 

16 Q I hand you R-29 and ask you, Mr. Saenz, if you see 

17 your kinsman at about age what, 12? 

~ A I do not know what age he had, 

~ Q Who is that? 

20 Ruben Chapa. 

21 Q And the next number is 29, is that correct? 

U A Yes, sir. 

23 Q And ·was Ruben at the north ranch on the date you 

24 have testified and told us about? 
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~ You don't recognize that picture as being him on 

2 the ranch on that day? 

3 A I don't ~member the picture having been taken, who 

4 took t t? 

5 Q Do you recognize Mr. Chapa? 

6 A Yes, sir. 

7 Q Does it appear to be a picture~ him when he was 

8 a much younger man? 

9 A No, he was a little bit fatter or more chubby. 

10 Q There is no doubt that is Ruben Chapa? 

11 A Yes, sir. 

12 Q I hand you R-36 and ask you if you recognize that 

13 as Mr. Zertuche? 

14 A Yes. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

THE MASTER: Which one? 

Q That is the father of Hector and Arturo? 

A Yes. 

Q And that is George Zertuche? 

A Yes. 

Q And you recognize him as being in that picture 

that you are holding there are R-36? 

A R-36, what is that? 

Q The number of the picture. 

24 A I do not know who took it. I did not watch or 

25 see when it was taken. 
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~ But you do recognize George Zertuche? 

2 i A Yes, sir. 

3 Q Do you know whether or not that was Mr. Zertuche 

4 on the north ranch on the day you testified to? 

5 A That was in the picture? 

6 '~ Yes. 

7 A He was in the picture, yes. 

8 Q I will ask you if he was there on the north ranch 

9 on the date you have testified to. 

10 A What do you mean on the date? 

11 Q On the day you had the backhoe out there. 

12 A No, sir. 

13 Q Do you recognize, in R-35, Judge Carrillo? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

15 Q And do you recognize the young man on the right? 

16 A Yes, sir. 

o Q Who is he? 

~ A Ruben Chapa. 

19 Q That is your kinsman that you have already 

20 identified to be in the picture, R-29? 

21 · A Yes. 

~ Q And you notice Patricio Garza? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q And who is the other gentleman there next to Judge 

25 Carrillo? 
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II A George Zertuche. 
I 

2 Q The same man that is shown in R-36? 

3 A The same one. 

4 Q Are those men in R-35 on the north ranch on the 

5 date that you deepened the tank? 

6 A No, sir. 

7 Q Now, I believe you had previously identified R-4o 

8 as being Judge Canillo? 

9 A Yes, sir. 

10 Q Yourself? 

II A Yes, sir. 

12 Q And Mr. Herrera? 

13 A Yes, sir. 

14 Q And part of the reservoir? 

IS A Part of the tank, but that part I did not build 

16 it and I am sure of that. 

17 Q But you recognize it as being the tank that you 

18 worked on with the backhoe? 

19 A Yes, at the same place, the tank is there. 

~ Q And that is according to, I believe, your testimony 

21 in 1971? 

~ A Yes, sir. 

~ Q N~w, I will ask you to look at R-41 and see if Judg 

24 Carrt"llo --

~ A Yes, sir. 
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Q Was dressed exactly as he is dressed, with a 

2 bandana, as in this one? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q And exactly as he is dressed and shown in R-35? 

s A Yes, sir. 

6 Q I will hand you R-37 and ask you if you recognize 

7 Judge Carrillo in that picture? 

s A Yes, sir. 

9 Q Do you know whether or not that picture was taken 

10 at the time that you have told us about? 

11 A No, sir, I don't know whether they took it or not. 

12 Q Does the Judge appear to be dressed the same as 

13 he was dressed in R-35? 

14 A Yes , s i r • 

15 Q R-41 1 

16 A Yes, sir. 

17 Q I hand you R-38, Mr. Sanchez, and ask you if you 

18 recognize the young Zertuche in that picture? 

H A Young, there are three young Zertuche's here. 

20 Q Arturo? 

21 A Yes , s i r • 

22 Q Hector? 

23 J\ Yes, sir. 

~ Q And what is the other boy's name? 

25 A George, Jr. 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY BANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840, 

1 
i 

I 



--~8~3~a. ·-~ -

Q You recognize them in that picture, don't you? \ 

2 A Yes, sir. 

3 Q And they are much younger than they are today? 

4 A Yes, sir. 

s Q Do you recognize that as being a picture taken on 

6 

7 

the ranch on the date that you worked on it, Mr. 

Sanchez? 

B A N'J, sir. 

9 Q I will ask you to look at R-42 and see if you 

10 recognize the Zertuche boys in it? 

11 A Yes, sir. 

12 Q Do you recognize Hector, George, Jr., and Arturo? 

13 A Yes, s 1 r. 

14 Q Do you recognize ttl!lt picture as being taken on the 

15 day you were working on the tank on the norfu 

16 ranch? 

17 A No, str, I do not, no. 

n Q I will hand you what has been marked as R-30, Mr. 

19 Sanchez, and we all know him, don•t we, that is 

20 Mr. Patricio Garza? 

21 A Uh-huh. 

22 Q You recognize him in the picture? 

23 A Yes, sir. 

24 Q And you·recognize him as being the same person 

25 as in R-35? 
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1 A Yes, sir. 

2 Q I will ask you about R-30, do you recall whether 

3 or hot that picture was taken on the date and time 

4 you did the work on the north ranch? 

s A No, sir, I did not see it. 

6 Q Do you recognize that as a windmill on the north 

7 ranch? 

8 A Yes, sir. 

9 Q Can you tell the court when, if you know, that 

10 picture was taken of Mr. Patricio Garza on a 

11 windmill on the north ranch? 

12 A I cannot tell you when, because I did not see thts 

13 pte ture. 

14 Q I will ask you if R-34 also is a picture of 

15 Patricio Garza and the windmill on the north ranch? 

16 A It ts Patricio. 

17 Q Is 1 t the windmill on the north ranch? 

18 A Yes, 1 t was. 

~ Q You said tt was, is it no longer tn existence? 

m A Not the tower. 

21 Q Do you recognize Mr. Patricio Garza in R-34 as betn 

22 on the ranch on the day you did the work? 

~ A I do not remember Patricio having been there with 

24 me. 

~ Q I will show you, Mr. Sanchez, R-31 and R-32 and ask 
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you if you recognize Judge Carrillo in those 

2 pictures? 

3 A Yes, sir. 

4 Q And do you recognize any of the other persons in 

5 those pictures? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q And do you recognize that picture as being taken 

8 on the north ranch at the time you took the backhoe 

9 out to deepen the water tank? 

10 A I don't remember them having-- I didn't see them 

11 take these pictures. 

12 Q All right. The windmill in R-34 and R-30 are no 

13 longer in existence, I believe you told me? 

14 A No, sir. 

15 Q They were blown down by the hurricane in 1968, 

16 weren't they? 

17 A NJ, sir. 

~ Q Do you know how they were destroyed? 

19 A y e s , s i r • 

~ Q Were they destroyed by the hurricane in 1970? 

21 A No, sir. 

~ Q How about the water tower in the back, was it 

23 destroyed in either 1968 or 1970 by the hurricane? 

24 A I do not know whe1her the wind blew it down or t t 

25 fell by itself -- it fell. They took it away from 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REPORTERS 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY SANK PLAZA 
CORPUS CHRISTl, TEXAS 18401 



-----tt-----·----------------____!,8!..;132_5 --+--
there. 

2 Q I hand you what has been marked for identification 

3 as R-2J and R-33, Mr. Sanchez, and ask you first 

4 about R-28, if you recognize the gentleman in 

5 that picture? 

6 A Yes, sir. 

7 Q And who is he? 

8 A Hector. 

9 Q Zertuche? 

W A Zertuche, yes. 

11 Q Who else do you recognize? 

12 A It is so blurry, I cannot distinguish them very 

13 well. 

14 Q Do you recall whether or not Hector was on the 

15 ranch on the date you had the backhoe out tere? 

16 A Hector? 

" ~ Yes, sir. 

U A At the time when I went out to work out there, no. 

~ Q Well, did he come later? 

~ A Well, I did not see him. 

~ Q ·r hand you R-39 and ask you if you recognize that 

22 as the backhoe you had on the ranch? 

~ A Yes, this is the machine. 

~ Q And Hector is driving it, is he not? 

~ A Yes, sir. 
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Q And you are sitting on the right-hand side of it? 

2 A Yes,sir. 

3 Q And you recognize that as a picture taken on the 

4 day you were working on the north ranch? 

s A That picture, yes, it is the picture -- it is 

6 the machine, I mean. 

7 -~ It is Hector driving the tnachine? 

s A Yes, sir. 

9 Q so, Hector was thece on that day? 

10 A What day? 

11 Q The day that machine was digging that tank out? 

12 A No. 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

Can I talk? 

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, I am going 

to ask him myself for an explanation. 

Yes, you may talk. 

THE WITNESS: We brought that machine 

there when we knocked down the windmill 

and afterwards, I came to work on the water 

tank there by myself. That is all. 

THE MASTER: When did you knock down 

the windmill? 

THE WITNESS: I am sure it was in 1971. 

I have been many times on the ranches, it 

could have been one of the other times. 
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Q. (By Mr. Mitchell:) Is it your testimony that you 

are not operating the backhoe in R-31 digging out 

the tank 

MR. MITCHELL: For the purpose of 

following this, you ought to look at it, 

Your Honor. 

THE WITNESS: That machine is not 

digging the tank there in that picture. 

9 Q It is not knocking down the windmill either? 

10 A Yes, but it is not building the tank either. 

II Q It is the machine that was out there that helped 

12 build the llank 1 

13 A yes, sir. 

14 Q And it is being driven by Hector Zertuche who is 

15 in the picture? 

16 A When we knocked down the windmill, yes, that was 

17 another time. 

18 Q Was it another time the sarne day? 

19 t- No. 

~ Q was it before or after you dug the tank, Mr. 

21 Sanchez? 

~ A It was -- this was before I dug the tank. 

~ c Would it have been 

H A Can I talk? 

25 Q Yes. 
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A Because to dig, we do not use this shovel to 
83-8-t 

dig. 

2 MR. ABARCA: Witness indicates R-39. 

3 THE WITNESS: We used it to pull or to 

4 dig a ditch. 

s Q Did you do work on the north :mnch, on the Carrillo 

6 ranch, any other time other than the time that 

7 you knocked down the windmill or helped dig out 

8 the tan 1<:? 

9 A I have gone so many times that I don't remember. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

23 

24 

25 
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Q I am r~adln~ from Volume 2, Page 15 of the trans-

cript of the proceedings before the Texas State 

House of Representatives, 

I will ask you if you nid not t~stify, in 

answer to this (luestton, "How many times did you 

pPrform work at the Carrlllo Ranch?", and your 

answer was, "Maybe a couple of times, two times, 

that is all." 

Did you Answer that at that time? 

A At that time, yes, sir, on that year, yPs. 

Q And the question was asked you at that time, "And 

the last one was in 1971?", and your answer was, 

"Yes". 

THE MASTER: This is a ~ood time for 

break, Mr. Mitchell. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, sir. 

I would like, before the break, to 

offer into evidence those last -- I am 

sorry, I didn't mean to ;ump up like that, 

Jud~e, but I don't want to leave these 

han~i.ng. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Mitchell, I suppose 

you would be content to reoffering 26, but -

I don't know that you pver identifieil 42, 

did you? 
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MISS FOX: I don't bplfPVP so. I don't 1 

2 have lt as having bPen fdPntifiPd. 

3 MR. MITCHELL: May I ask a predicate 

4 question ra~tdly on ft? 

5 THE ~ASTER: You may. Ynu don't ask it 

6 any other way. 

7 Q {By Mr. Mitchell:)! show you R-42. Do you recog-

8 nize these Zertuche boys in t~e? 

9 A Yes . s f.r. 

W Q And they were, I believe, George, Junior? 

11 A Yes, l'lir. 

~ Q And Hector and Arturo, and they are the same 

13 picture as in R-36? 

14 A Yes, sir. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MITCHELL: We now offer, Your 

Honor, all of the photographs, 26 through 

and including 42. 

MR. ODAM: Your Honor, this witness 

has not identified the time on which these 

pictures were taken and he has certainly 

not identified them as being taken on the 

day that the tank was supposed to have ban 

dug and, as a matter of fact, he said that 

the blade on the back hoe was a different 

type of blade than was used when he did and 
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that is th~ only picture that could possibly 

link these pictures to the other case in 

question and we, therefore, object to them 

as not bein~..:.:ff:~!·,ly authenticated. 

THE MASTER: The moti.on is overruled. 
r 

I think it ~oes to the wei.~ht. 
·~~ \ .· n ' i'~ ~ , :nil . 

Let me :·;'~e the' photoJ!:raphs and then 

they are admitted. 

(Respondent's Exhflits 26 throu~h 42 

were admitted into evidence.) 

THE MASTER: w~ will be in recess untf.l 

ei~ht-thirty tomorrow morntn~. 

MR. FLUSCHE: You m~an Monday morning? 

THE MASTER: I mean Monday mornin~. 

-Indeed. 

(Hearin~ in recess from Friday, Novem-

ber 7th at one o'clock p.m. until Monday, 

November 10, et~ht thirty a.m.) 
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